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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: This is the first

          3  panel, there will be those pro for the bill, then

          4  those in opposition to the bill, et cetera, et

          5  cetera. Each witness will have three minutes to

          6  testify. My hope is that we'll be able to limit the

          7  questions for each panel to five minutes.

          8                 My hope is that that portion of the

          9  hearing will end at approximately 6:00 or so. We

         10  will then accept open testimony from people who are

         11  not prescheduled panelists, until 8:00 p.m.

         12                 As I said this is the first hearing,

         13  all of you on your chairs should have this flyer

         14  which explains what I just outlined and also has a

         15  place with your name, address, phone number and

         16  e-mail.

         17                 If you would like to testify today

         18  but are not a prescheduled panelist and don't

         19  believe you can stay til 8:00 p.m., please fill this

         20  out, give it to one of our Sergeant-At-Arms in the

         21  blue blazer and we will make sure you are notified

         22  of the second hearing on this bill.

         23                 Also, I want to just say that

         24  regarding signs and things like that in the hearing,

         25  our rule is that people are totally fine, if folks
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          2  have eight and a half by eleven signs, if you want

          3  to hold those up, we request that you only hold

          4  those up at about chest height, not to block those

          5  behind you, if you hold up signs over your head

          6  regardless of your position, we will ask you to put

          7  them down or take them away.

          8                 Also, I'm requesting that there be,

          9  in an effort to move things forward, no outburst

         10  either way from the crowd. If that does occur,

         11  you'll of course get a warning, if those warnings

         12  are not heeded, the Sergeant-At-Arms are prepared to

         13  clear the Chambers if need be. I hope that doesn't

         14  happen, but I want to set those ground rules out

         15  from the very beginning. And in deference to Council

         16  Member Reed, please, everyone, turn off your cell

         17  phones, and keep them off if you go to the theater

         18  later.

         19                 I want to not the Council Members who

         20  are here with us today. Starting on my right we have

         21  Council Member Felder; Council Member Reed, who is a

         22  member of the Health Committee; Council Member Sears

         23  who is a member of the Health Committee; Council

         24  Member Lanza; Council Member Katz; the Minority

         25  Leader Council Member Oddo, who is a member of the
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          2  Health Committee; the Speaker of the City Council,

          3  Gifford Miller; Council Member Kendall Stewart, who

          4  is a member of the Health Committee, Council Member

          5  Joel Rivera, Majority Leader; Council Member Maria

          6  Baez; Council Member Domenic Recchia; Council Member

          7  Gale Brewer; Council Member Oliver Koppell; Council

          8  Member Dilan; Council Member Liu; Council Member

          9  Provenzano; Council Member Jackson; Council Member

         10  Vallone; Council Member Seabrook; Council Member

         11  Reverend Diaz; Council Member James Sanders; Council

         12  Member Leroy Comrie; and Council Member David

         13  Weprin; and Council Member Yvette Clarke, who is

         14  also a member of the Health Committee, and Council

         15  Member Mike Nelson.

         16                 As I said, we are here today to hear

         17  testimony on Intro. No. 256 and Intro., a piece of

         18  legislation known as the Clean Indoor Air Act, which

         19  was introduced at the request of Mayor Michael

         20  Bloomberg, sponsored by Council Members Quinn, Oddo,

         21  Brewer, Clarke, DeBlasio, Felder, Foster, Gerson,

         22  Koppell, Martinez, Perkins, Sears, Serrano, Stewart,

         23  Vann, Comrie, Lopez, Reyna, Vallone, Baez, Diaz and

         24  Provenzano.

         25                 The bill in its most basic of charm
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          2  seeks to make smoking in all restaurants, bars,

          3  private clubs, facilities where there are employees,

          4  private offices illegal.

          5                 I'm not going to spend too much time

          6  giving an overview of the bill because that's really

          7  what the first panel will do and we have heard a

          8  great deal about it already in the press.

          9                 I am, though, going to now turn the

         10  hearing over to the New York City Council, Council

         11  Member Gifford Miller, our Speaker.

         12                 SPEAKER MILLER: Thank you, Madam

         13  Chair. I just wanted to take a very brief

         14  opportunity to welcome all of you, and, of course,

         15  the Mayor, to the City Council Chambers on a day

         16  which I'm sure is going to be a long day, but this

         17  is a great day I think for the City Council and for

         18  the City. We have a piece of legislation that is

         19  sweeping, that is important, that has tremendous

         20  consequences for the City and we're having an

         21  opportunity now to have a spirit debate and to

         22  listen to all sides of that debate, consider the

         23  different points of view.

         24                 Council members will have an

         25  opportunity to ask questions, and I think at the end
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          2  of today we will have taken a step in the right

          3  direction of the legislative process, which is so

          4  important to the City and to the people of New York.

          5                 So, I want to welcome all of you. I

          6  wish that this happened a little more often, because

          7  there are a lot of pieces of legislation that we

          8  consider in the Council, but we're glad that you're

          9  all here today and we look forward to hearing what

         10  you have to say.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And just before

         12  the first panel starts, I just want to announce the

         13  second panel so they could be on deck in an effort

         14  to move things along. It's Jim McBratney, President

         15  of the Staten Island Restaurant and Tavern

         16  Association; Kevin Shea, restaurant employee;

         17  Kiernan Staton of O'Neills, Alan Londonon of the

         18  Cavalier Restaurant and George Wachtel of the

         19  audience research analyst. You'll be after this

         20  panel, I just wanted to notify you of that, and I

         21  also want to recognize that the Deputy presiding

         22  officer of the Nassau County Legislature, Roger

         23  Corbin, is with us today, as is Assemblymember Peter

         24  Grannis.

         25                 That's it. I'm going to turn it over
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          2  to the first panel, in whatever order you'd like, so

          3  I could kind of guess whose going to go first. And

          4  if all witnesses could identify themselves for the

          5  record, and we probably will not give this witness

          6  the three-minute clock, but if he goes over we might

          7  impose one.

          8                 MAYOR BLOOMBERG: Madam Chairwoman,

          9  thank you for inviting us here today. Members of the

         10  City Council, particularly the Committee on Health,

         11  the measure before us today offers all of us, the

         12  Mayor, the Speaker, your Committee, and all the

         13  members of this legislative body, a rare

         14  opportunity, not simply to achieve the goal that

         15  most of our work is directed towards, that is to

         16  improve the quality of life of our fellow New

         17  Yorkers; no, this measure will do something much

         18  more precious - it will preserve lives, extend

         19  lives, save lives. In fact, it will almost certainly

         20  save more lives than any other proposal that will

         21  ever come before this Chamber.

         22                 The facts are incontrovertible. Any

         23  reputable scientist will tell you that tobacco kills

         24  more New Yorkers than any other cause - roughly

         25  10,000 people in this City every year, including
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          2  some 1,000 from involuntary smoking, otherwise known

          3  as secondhand smoke. Enacting this bill, Intro. 256,

          4  will not outlaw the right of an individual to smoke

          5  and put his or her own life in jeopardy. If someone

          6  wants to inhale smoke directly or indirectly, that's

          7  their right. But Intro. 256 will protect thousands

          8  and thousands of New Yorkers from involuntary

          9  exposure to the arsenic, formaldehyde and other

         10  deadly chemicals present in smoke-filled rooms.

         11  Intro. 256 will ensure that no worker in our City

         12  will ever have to risk contracting cancer, or a

         13  heart disease or lung disease from exposure to other

         14  smoke just to hold a job.

         15                 The question before us is

         16  straightforward: Does your desire to smoke anywhere

         17  at any time trump the right of others to breathe

         18  clean air in the workplace? Common sense and common

         19  decency demand the following answer: The need to

         20  breathe clean air is more important than the license

         21  to pollute it.

         22                 The protection of air quality in the

         23  workplace is receiving mounting attention from local

         24  governments in this region and across the nation.

         25                 Earlier this week, the Nassau County
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          2  Legislature enacted a measure similar to Intro. 256.

          3  With the law taking up no more than one page of

          4  print, they have protected all workers in that

          5  county. Can we do less?

          6                 Elected officials in Westchester and

          7  Suffolk Counties are also deliberating comparable

          8  measures. If those counties along with our City pass

          9  these measures, more than half the state's

         10  population will be covered.

         11                 The cities of Chicago and Boston also

         12  are considering this issue, and statewide

         13  protections against secondhand smoke have already

         14  been legislated in Delaware and California.

         15                 Clearly, the question of protecting

         16  workers from secondhand smoke is increasingly

         17  becoming one not of when but of why not now?

         18                 Today you will hear compelling

         19  testimony in favor of Intro. 256. It will come from

         20  witnesses who are New Yorkers, they are taxpayers,

         21  they are voters, they're employers. Most

         22  importantly, though, they are our relatives, friends

         23  and neighbors. Their testimony will make the case

         24  for Intro. 256 unassailable. None of them is being

         25  paid directly or indirectly by the tobacco industry
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          2  to testify. That is a statement that some of those

          3  who will later be testifying against Intro. 256, and

          4  recommending leaving workers exposed to

          5  cancer-causing chemicals will not be able to make.

          6                 Seated with me are three witnesses

          7  whose testimony will directly follow mine. The first

          8  is City Health Commissioner Dr. Thomas Frieden, a

          9  man recognized as one of the world's premiere

         10  epidemiologists. Ten years ago, Dr. Frieden led the

         11  effort that stopped New York City's epidemic of

         12  multi-drug resistant tuberculosis. As a result, New

         13  York City's program has become an international

         14  model for controlling TB.

         15                 At the time I recruited him to become

         16  Health Commissioner, he was working in India where

         17  he had assisted that Nation's Government in

         18  developing one of the world's most effective and

         19  largest public health programs, one to date that has

         20  saved more than 200,000 lives.

         21                 On assuming office at my direction,

         22  Dr. Frieden examined the conditions that were making

         23  New Yorkers sick. He found that tobacco use was the

         24  number one cause of preventable death in New York

         25  City, killing more than TB, AIDS, homicide, suicide
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          2  and alcohol combined. Today we have his results. Now

          3  we must act.

          4                 I'm also honored to introduce Dr.

          5  Harold Varmus, recipient of the Nobel Prize for

          6  Medicine in his studies on the genetic basis of

          7  cancer. He is a former Director of the National

          8  Institutes of Health, and is currently the President

          9  and CEO of one of the most respected cancer research

         10  and treatment facilities in the nation, Memorial

         11  Sloan-Kettering Cancer Center. He is the author of

         12  more than 300 scientific papers and four books. He

         13  has contributed greatly to the understanding,

         14  diagnosis and treatment of cancer.

         15                 He sees the results of smoke every

         16  day. Perhaps later you might ask him just how easy

         17  it is to tell parents or family members that they or

         18  someone they love have only a limited time before a

         19  painful death, even though that person was a

         20  non-smoker.

         21                 The fourth witness on this panel is

         22  Matinah Payne-Yehudah. She has worked in the

         23  restaurant and bar industry for many years. She has

         24  asthma. She is also expecting to give birth early

         25  next year and she is here to tell you her concerns
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          2  about the affect of breathing tobacco smoke on her

          3  health and on the health of her expected child.

          4                 On panels following this one, you

          5  will hear from other employees of restaurants, bars

          6  and offices who are not currently protected from

          7  secondhand smoke on the job.

          8                 Their health would be safeguarded and

          9  their lives would be extended by passing Intro. 256.

         10                 Opponents of this measure casually

         11  suggest that these witnesses could simply find other

         12  jobs.

         13                 I don't know what world they're

         14  living in. In my mind that statement is as divorced

         15  from reality as Marie Antoinette suggestion that

         16  those without bread simply eat cake.

         17                 You will also hear from economists,

         18  restaurateurs and bar owners who will testify that

         19  going smoke-free does not hurt business. You will

         20  hear from concerned New Yorkers who want to protect

         21  their communities and ensure that every New Yorker

         22  breathes clean air while at work.

         23                 The testimonies of Drs Frieden and

         24  Varmus on the danger of secondhand smoke will also

         25  be corroborated by testimony from other eminent
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          2  medical experts. They will describe how even 30

          3  minutes to exposure to secondhand smoke changes the

          4  blood chemistry increasing the risk of heart attack.

          5  They will explain how putting in an eight-hour shift

          6  in a smoke-filled restaurant or bar is the

          7  equivalent of smoking half a pack of cigarettes.

          8                 They will tell you that the air in a

          9  smoke-filled bar is more dangerous to breathe than

         10  that in the Holland Tunnel at rush hour.

         11                 Members of the Council, none of us

         12  would choose to work in such an unhealthy

         13  environment.

         14                 None of us would want our loved ones

         15  exposed to such dangers every working day.

         16                 Intro. 256 is our opportunity to free

         17  thousands of workers in our City from such hazardous

         18  conditions.

         19                 It should be seen as the just and

         20  logical extension of protections against secondhand

         21  smoke that already are in place in most public

         22  settings.

         23                 Opponents of 256 have raised a

         24  variety of objections, none of which stand up to

         25  careful scrutiny. They have proposed a number of
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          2  compromises and exemptions, none of which passes the

          3  test of practicality or fairness. In fact, the

          4  arguments against 256 and the various proposals to

          5  saddle it with hostile and unworkable amendments,

          6  are, if you'll excuse the phrase, a smoke screen.

          7  They are part of a well orchestrated disinformation

          8  campaign designed to distract the public and you

          9  from the real issues at hand, the right to earn a

         10  living in a safe workplace environment.

         11                 The tobacco industry's support for

         12  this decade's long disinformation campaign, is

         13  intended to weaken the regulation of an innately

         14  dangerous product.

         15                 You will note that they have given up

         16  contending that smoking by you or someone else in

         17  the same room is not harmful. The evidence on that

         18  is clear. Secondhand smoking kills. Instead, they

         19  focus on diversionary, non-germane arguments.

         20                 One such disinformation claim is that

         21  those who cannot smoke in offices, restaurants,

         22  bars, and nightclubs will loiter on street corners

         23  and disturb the peace.

         24                 Forget for a moment the absurdity of

         25  equating that possible behavior with a known
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          2  life-threatening activity. The fact is, loitering

          3  and disturbing the peace are illegal. The City has

          4  the means to prevent such activity and will enforce

          5  the laws against it.

          6                 The NYPD's dramatic success in

          7  reducing crime and making New York the safest large

          8  City in the nation has been built on a foundation of

          9  zero tolerance for such behavior. No one should

         10  doubt that my Administration intends to build on

         11  that foundation of success.

         12                 Case in point: Last weekend we

         13  launched Operation Silent Night, a major coordinated

         14  Citywide crackdown on noise. As part of that

         15  operation, the NYPD issued 778 summonses, made 34

         16  arrests and seized seven vehicles.

         17                 I urge all New Yorkers whose peace is

         18  disturbed by noise or rowdiness on the streets to

         19  call the Police Department's Quality of Life Hot

         20  Line, 1-888-677-LIFE.

         21                 Let's get real. There is no evidence

         22  that banning smoking increases such disturbances. In

         23  New York City thousands of restaurants are already

         24  smoke-free. This has not produced a problem with

         25  loitering or disturbing the peace. The evidence from
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          2  other states and cities where smoke-free legislation

          3  has been passed is similar.

          4                 Another element in the disinformation

          5  campaign against Intro. 256, is that business owners

          6  will suffer financially if the air in their

          7  establishments is clean.

          8                 I ask you to consider the wide range

          9  of public venues in New York in which smoking is

         10  already prohibited - movie theaters, concert halls,

         11  museums, airplane terminals, train stations, sport

         12  stadiums and arenas, and since 1995 thousands of

         13  eating establishments comprising more than half of

         14  the total number of restaurants in New York City.

         15  There is no evidence that prohibiting smoking has

         16  reduced attendance or income at those venues.

         17                 Most people, even those who smoke,

         18  prefer to breathe clean air. Four out of five adult

         19  New Yorkers don't smoke. Some public opinion surveys

         20  have suggested that many more New Yorkers would go

         21  out more often if bars and nightclubs become

         22  smoke-free.

         23                 Along with these fabricated arguments

         24  against Intro. 256, the various proposals to

         25  undermine it with amendments and exemptions are a
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          2  second line of attack. They are uniformly unworkable

          3  and unfair.

          4                 Separate smoking rooms, for example,

          5  have been proposed. These are a bad idea for the

          6  same reasons that smoking areas are not permitted in

          7  airplanes, hospitals, schools, libraries and movie

          8  theaters. Smoking air gets recirculated. Nor can all

          9  businesses afford to construct separate rooms,

         10  creating an uneven playing field for such businesses

         11  is not good public policy.

         12                 Ventilation systems which also will

         13  be suggested as a way to delay or derail this

         14  legislation, are no solution either. They simply

         15  don't work. No ventilation system can prevent smoke

         16  from affecting a worker, such as a waiter or a

         17  bartender, who is two feet from the smoke.

         18                 The engineering requirements for

         19  adequate ventilation to remove the poisons in

         20  secondhand smoke are so cumbersome, expensive and

         21  complex that they simply can't be implemented and

         22  enforced. And as with separate smoking areas, the

         23  expense involved in installing such ventilation

         24  creates an uneven playing field for business.

         25                 The experience other cities and
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          2  states have had with mandating such ventilation

          3  systems is also instructive. When legislators in

          4  those jurisdictions have realized that ventilation

          5  systems haven't solved the problem of eliminating

          6  secondhand smoke, and have proposed new action, what

          7  has been the result? Business owners protest, with

          8  some justification, that the money the government

          9  has encouraged them to invest in ventilation systems

         10  has been wasted. The only problem is that their

         11  anger is misplaced. It ought to be directed at the

         12  tobacco industry. Remember, nothing in the 1995

         13  Smoke-Free Workplace Act has required any business

         14  to invest in better ventilation. If some have, they

         15  have done so on their own, usually at modest cost.

         16  And Intro. 256 would actually help owners of

         17  businesses where smoking is now permitted. It would

         18  end the constant hassle of satisfying customers who

         19  want seating or accommodations completely free from

         20  contact with smoke.

         21                 Some will testify the decision to go

         22  smoke-free should be left up to individual

         23  employers. This is a hollow argument. When one

         24  person smoking causes another person significant

         25  risk of disease and death, government must act.
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          2                 All workers deserve a safe, healthy

          3  work environment. No one should be allowed to make

          4  someone else sick.

          5                 Would anybody seriously suggest that

          6  the removal of asbestos fiber or other serious

          7  carcinogens from the air should be similarly

          8  discretionary?

          9                 Finally, some will put forward

         10  proposals to exempt certain locations from the

         11  provisions of this proposed law. Those who want such

         12  exemptions just need to tell us this: Which workers

         13  have lives that are worth less than yours and mine?

         14                 Because the members of this Council

         15  recognize that we have an obligation to protect the

         16  lives of all New Yorkers, I believe you will pass

         17  this historic legislation.

         18                 I believe you will seize this

         19  historic opportunity to protect the health and lives

         20  of thousands of our fellow New Yorkers. I believe

         21  you will make New York City a national leader in

         22  ending the workplace hazards of secondplace smoke.

         23                 I urge this Committee to report

         24  Intro. 256 to the Council promptly and

         25  affirmatively. It would be a fitting achievement if
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          2  this landmark law were to be passed by the Council

          3  and signed in time for the annual Great American

          4  Smoke Out on Thursday, November 21st. Then you, the

          5  entire Council and I, can gather on the steps of

          6  City Hall, along with 1,000 other people, to

          7  symbolize the annual number of our friends and

          8  neighbors who will live because of your work.

          9                 Let me make one final request. This

         10  one to those in the audience who have come to

         11  participate in the democratic process through your

         12  presence and your applause.

         13                 All of today's witnesses have the

         14  right to express their views, and the members of

         15  this Committee have a right to hear them, without

         16  interference. If you disagree with someone's

         17  testimony, show that disagreement with your silence.

         18  Nothing will show the commitment to your beliefs

         19  more than the deafening expression of those who died

         20  from secondhand smoke and what they will hear for

         21  eternity.

         22                 Let's permit the democratic process

         23  to go forward in a reasonable and open discussion of

         24  the facts. I, for one, have no doubt what the

         25  outcome will be.
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          2                 Members of the Committee, thank you

          3  for the opportunity to present this testimony. I

          4  look forward to standing with you to protect the

          5  health of all who live and work in our City.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mr. Frieden, if

          7  you could keep going, we going to have the whole --

          8  (outburst from audience.)

          9                 Excuse me. Excuse me. If we can hold

         10  all applause. No applause for or against. No

         11  outbursts, please. We need to move things forward.

         12                 Noise means to disagree, so I'm not

         13  really sure what people thought there.

         14                 We're going to hear the whole panel

         15  and then we're going to do questions.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Thank you. I'm

         17  Tom Frieden, Health Commissioner.

         18                 Chairwoman Quinn, Speaker Miller and

         19  members of the Council, thank you for this

         20  opportunity to discuss this important legislation.

         21                 On March 25th, 1911, not far from

         22  here in Lower Manhattan, a fire swept through the

         23  Triangle Shirtwaist Factory. One-hundred and

         24  forty-six workers, most of them immigrants, working

         25  long hours for low pay, died tragically in the
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          2  sweatshop that day.

          3                 The public outcry that followed led

          4  New York to pass some of the most significant

          5  workplace protection laws in the nation, and these

          6  served as a model for the National Labor Standards

          7  Act. You have an opportunity to enact legislation

          8  that can similarly serve as a national model for

          9  worker protection, protection from deadly secondhand

         10  smoke that disproportionately affects minority

         11  workers underpaid and working long hours.

         12                 Every day the Health Department

         13  registers the deaths of 25 New Yorkers who were

         14  killed by tobacco. About one out of every ten who

         15  die from tobacco, die because of other people's

         16  smoke. The evidence that secondhand smoke kills is

         17  clear and consistent.

         18                 This evidence comes from studies of

         19  the chemicals in secondhand smoke, from animal

         20  studies and from studies analyzing the health of

         21  hundreds of thousands of people. There is no

         22  scientific doubt on this matter.

         23                 Secondhand smoke increases the risk

         24  of heart disease. Breathing even a little secondhand

         25  smoke changes the way the blood clots, reduces the
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          2  bloodflow to the heart, and increases the risk of

          3  heart attack.

          4                 Secondhand smoke increases the risk

          5  of lung cancer. The more of other people's smoke you

          6  inhale, the more likely you are to get lung cancer.

          7                 Secondhand smoke worsens asthma and

          8  lung disease. Workplace exposure can increase the

          9  odds of asthma and bronchitis two- and three-fold.

         10  Secondhand smoke increases the risk of low birth

         11  weight.

         12                 These aren't theoretical or minor

         13  risks. Approximately 1,000 New Yorkers will die this

         14  year from secondhand smoke.

         15                 An additional 40,000 New Yorkers will

         16  suffer illnesses brought on or worsened by

         17  secondhand smoke.

         18                 Secondhand smoke is an environmental

         19  poison. We recently tested the air in smoky bars and

         20  we were amazed to find out just how polluted these

         21  places are. Even with only four or five smokers

         22  present, in one minute a bartender breathes as much

         23  pollution as you would standing for nearly an hour

         24  at the Holland Tunnel during rushhour.

         25                 In less than two hours in a smoky

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  bar, workers and patrons breathe in more pollution

          3  than allowed in a whole day under the proposed

          4  24-hour EPA outdoor standard.

          5                 Our recent Citywide health survey

          6  tells us definitively that more than 400,000

          7  non-smoking New York City residents are exposed to

          8  secondhand smoke all or most of the time at their

          9  workplaces.

         10                 Secondhand smoke is an occupational

         11  hazard, whether you're a waiter or a secretary, a

         12  bartender or a banker. African-Americans, Latinos,

         13  Latinas, and those who make less money are about

         14  twice as likely to have to breathe secondhand smoke

         15  on their job.

         16                 Owners don't have the right to expose

         17  workers to the hazardous chemicals in secondhand

         18  smoke. The fundamental principle of worker safety is

         19  that workers should not have to choose between their

         20  health and their jobs.

         21                 Restaurant and bar owners will say

         22  that this legislation will hurt business.

         23                 This is simply not true. In this very

         24  Chamber the same thing was said in 1994, when your

         25  predecessors passed legislation that made most

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  restaurants smoke-free. Opponents said restaurants

          3  would "lose up to a quarter of their business." What

          4  happened? Sales increased.

          5                 They said the law would quote "cost

          6  the City 11,000 jobs." What happened? We gained

          7  19,000 jobs.

          8                 They said tourists would "steer clear

          9  of New York City." What happened? Tourism bloomed.

         10                 The fact is going smoke-free doesn't

         11  hurt business.

         12                 Even Phillip Morris, in an internal

         13  document admitted, and I quote, "the economic

         14  arguments often used by the industry to scare off

         15  smoking ban activity were no longer working. These

         16  arguments simply had no credibility with the public,

         17  which isn't surprising when you consider that our

         18  dire predictions in the past rarely came true."

         19                 Objective studies from around the

         20  country, including from New York City, show that

         21  smoke-free workplace laws don't hurt business. In

         22  our next panel you'll hear data showing that after

         23  the 1995 statute, restaurant business improved in

         24  each of New York City's five boroughs.

         25                 This isn't surprising four out of
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          2  five New Yorkers don't smoke. We anticipated that

          3  although the public health benefits are compelling,

          4  there would be economic concerns. That's why we

          5  surveyed tour operators in the top eight countries

          6  New York City gets its tourists from.

          7                 Not a single operator reported even a

          8  single client who changed their plans based on a

          9  city's smoking policies. Analysis of the Department

         10  of Commerce's data shows absolutely no relationship

         11  between a city's smoke-free policies and

         12  international tourism.

         13                 And in California, after bars went

         14  smoke-free, they changed gained market share in

         15  eating and drinking revenues.

         16                 There may be suggestions that

         17  ventilation systems can eliminate the hazards of

         18  secondhand smoke. Such a system would have to

         19  exhaust air outside the building, create negative

         20  pressure to draw contaminated air out, then heat or

         21  cool new air that's pumped back in.

         22                 Installing and maintaining this type

         23  of system is impractical and prohibitively

         24  expensive. Even the tobacco industry is careful to

         25  claim -- not to claim that ventilation systems will

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  prevent disease caused by secondhand smoke.

          3                 Big tobacco will try to cast doubt on

          4  how harmful secondhand smoke is. They'll claim that

          5  the economic sky will fall if this legislation is

          6  passed. They'll claim that ventilation systems are

          7  an acceptable alternative. They'll try to discredit,

          8  delay and derail this legislation.

          9                 Three simple facts make the case for

         10  this legislation overwhelming. First, secondhand

         11  smoke kills. Second, closing loopholes in the

         12  current law will save more than 10,000 lives. Third,

         13  making workplaces smoke-free won't hurt business. I

         14  am confident that you will act to ensure that no

         15  worker in New York City has to risk illness and

         16  death from secondhand smoke just to hold a job.

         17                 Four-hundred thousand non-smokers in

         18  New York City are secondhand smokers in their own

         19  workplaces. As you consider this legislation, please

         20  don't forget these people. Their lives are in your

         21  hands. Every day they breathe other people's smoke

         22  at their jobs and they risk getting sick and dying

         23  because of it.

         24                 But each and every one of them can

         25  stop secondhand smoking. All you have to do is pass
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          2  this legislation.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We're now going to

          5  institute the three-minute clock for the next

          6  witnesses from here on in, all witnesses from here

          7  on in. Thank you.

          8                 DR. VARMUS: I appreciate that, Madam

          9  Chairman. That's fine. The case has been made

         10  effectively already.

         11                 I'm Harold Varmus, as you've heard,

         12  President of Memorial Sloan-Kettering Cancer Center,

         13  and I appreciate a chance to speak briefly before

         14  you.

         15                 As the Mayor has already indicated, I

         16  have given most of my professional life to

         17  understand cancer and its causes, and like all

         18  health scientists, I recognize tobacco as the

         19  single, most important, and most controllable threat

         20  to this nation's health.

         21                 That's true for several reasons. Use

         22  of tobacco is addictive to the smoker. More

         23  importantly, it delivers to the user and to those

         24  who are in the environment around smokers, acute

         25  toxic substances, substances that cause mutations
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          2  and these factors deliver to those who are in the

          3  vicinity of smokers and the smokers themselves

          4  higher risks of a number of malities - impaired

          5  fetal development; pulmonary ailments, including

          6  chronic bronchitis and emphysema and asthma.

          7  Diseases of the cardiovascular system, including

          8  heart attacks and chronic heart disease; and most

          9  especially cancer, cancer of the lung and the

         10  oro-pharynx.

         11                 It's been estimated that elimination

         12  of smoking would eliminate roughly 80 percent of all

         13  lung cancers and a very high percentage of all

         14  cancers.

         15                 Now, efforts to reduce exposure to

         16  these risks must be a major component of any

         17  enlightened public health policy in any enlightened

         18  city like our own. There are three goals to a public

         19  health policy that intends to reduce the ill-effects

         20  of tobacco use.

         21                 First, efforts to reduce the

         22  likelihood that any individual begins to smoke.

         23  Secondly, one wants to increase the chances that

         24  someone who is addicted can stop smoking; and,

         25  third, most important for today's discussion, reduce
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          2  the exposure to smoke produced by others.

          3                 Now, these programs work. We know

          4  already as a nation that we've begun to reduce death

          5  and cancer in this country and most of that

          6  reduction could be attributed to the reduction in

          7  mortality from lung cancer in men as a result of

          8  smoking cessations.

          9                 But none of these programs is fully

         10  effective. They need to be coordinated and pursued

         11  at all directions.

         12                 Now, bans on smoking in public

         13  facilities and workplaces are crucial components of

         14  these efforts, and that's true for a number of

         15  reasons: First, as you've heard already and will

         16  hear in more detail, exposure to secondhand smoke in

         17  these situations is significant by accurate

         18  measurements of what happens in the bloodstream and

         19  airways of these individuals.

         20                 Secondly, we know from direct

         21  measurements that these exposures have a detrimental

         22  effect on cardiac function, and they have an effect

         23  on respiratory health.

         24                 Thirdly, there's a clear prediction

         25  that reduction will increase chance or incidence.
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          2                 And, fourth, --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Doctor, if you

          4  could wrap up, your time is up.

          5                 DR. VARMUS: Yes, I will. It's

          6  reasonable to assume that bans will help people stop

          7  and keep from starting smoking.

          8                 There is also an initiative of

          9  equity, which you've heard about. Those who work in

         10  bars and restaurants are more heavily exposed to

         11  environmental smoke than others, and they tend to be

         12  young and disadvantaged, need to be protected from

         13  the threats to health they'd otherwise feel obliged

         14  to endure.

         15                 For all these reasons, I strongly

         16  support the Mayor's proposal to amend the code and

         17  you should, too.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 MS. PAYNE-YEHUDAH: Good afternoon,

         22  Congresswoman Quinn, Health Committee members --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'll take the

         24  elevation.

         25                 MS. PAYNE-YEHUDAH: Thank you for this
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          2  opportunity to testify. My name is Matinah

          3  Payne-Yehudah, and I'm a 24-year-old mother-to-be, a

          4  bartender, and a New Yorker. I have never really

          5  been involved in politics, but I feel right now

          6  compelled to protect myself and my baby.

          7                 I am a new business owner and I have

          8  worked in a bar and restaurant industry for many

          9  years. Because of my work I've been subjected to

         10  secondhand smoke for a very long time.

         11                 I have asthma and the smoke makes me

         12  sick sometimes, but basically I have to do the job

         13  because of the extra money. I need the extra money

         14  at night. I worked bartending while I was going to

         15  college, and waitressing also. I've done hostessing.

         16  Asthma, it makes me sick sometimes, I cough a lot

         17  sometimes and I get watery eyes, you know, my voice

         18  goes away and things like that.

         19                 I was a bartender for two years

         20  before the date that I found out I was pregnant.

         21                 I immediately stopped working when I

         22  found out, stopped working in any type of bar

         23  environment, smoking environment, but my unborn

         24  child has been exposed to the cigarette smoke and

         25  the secondhand smoke for two straight months, the
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          2  first two months of pregnancy, to this

          3  cancer-causing smoke.

          4                 Quitting was a big difficulty in my

          5  life, basically because the bartending paid my

          6  income (sic), as far as my rent and all my other

          7  bills. I also worked a day job and I also have a

          8  business that I run. I started a new business in the

          9  past six months. My finances are far from sound, and

         10  I depend on additional income to support myself.

         11                 Fortunately, I was forced to choose

         12  between our health and my job. It was a very easy

         13  decision to make because my child comes first.

         14                 I'm still looking for new nighttime

         15  work now, but my options are very limited since bars

         16  have the right hours and they're open during the

         17  night.

         18                 I have never smoked a day in my life,

         19  I eat right. I don't eat meat. I exercise, and I

         20  take pride in my health. I can only pray that the

         21  time that I was working at the bar didn't cause harm

         22  to my baby.

         23                 People don't expect businessmen or

         24  women to sit down at a desk surrounded by smoke. But

         25  bartenders, waiters and hostesses are expected to
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          2  inhale the poison in smoke for 40 hours per week.

          3  And in my case, my baby was expected to do the same.

          4                 I strongly support Intro. 256 and I

          5  call on my Councilman James Davis to support this

          6  bill and to be a leader, not only in a public

          7  safety, but the public as well.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I just

         10  want to say, before we take questions, that we've

         11  also been joined by Council Member Tony Avella from

         12  Queens, Council Member David Yassky from Brooklyn,

         13  Council Member Serrano from the Bronx, and we've

         14  been joined by the Chair of the New York State

         15  Assembly's Health Committee Richard Gottfried.

         16                 Council Member Oddo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         18  Chair.

         19                 Mr. Mayor, welcome to these chambers.

         20  It was a proud moment in my career to be able to

         21  stand next to you as a sponsor with Council member

         22  and Chairlady Quinn on this bill. I have but one

         23  question for Tom Frieden, Commissioner Frieden.

         24                 Clearly, as we heard earlier from the

         25  testimony from the gallery, there are some folks who
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          2  maintain that the science is in doubt, that there is

          3  scholarship and data out there that bolsters their

          4  argument that secondhand smoke is not dangerous.

          5                 Could you provide this Committee some

          6  details about the data that's out there about the

          7  studies? And to the point, are there any valid

          8  studies that run counter to our position that

          9  secondhand smoke kills?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There is no

         11  legitimate scientific doubt that secondhand smoke is

         12  deadly.

         13                 The type of evidence that supports

         14  this is a large variety, and there are literally

         15  hundreds or thousands of well-designed scientific

         16  studies that show a major risk.

         17                 Some of those studies look at the

         18  actual components of smoke. Some of those studies

         19  are animal studies. For example, if you expose a

         20  rodent to smoke for just a short period of time and

         21  then artificially create a heart attack, that heart

         22  attack is twice the size of a heart attack in

         23  someone who is not exposed to secondhand smoke.

         24                 There are also studies that have been

         25  summarized on hundreds of thousands of individuals,
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          2  epidemiologic studies from this country and many

          3  other countries. Later on this afternoon, you will

          4  hear from Dr. John Samet. Dr. Samet led the World

          5  Health Organization, an international agency for

          6  research on cancer review of the hazards of

          7  secondhand smoke.

          8                 We can demonstrate that even 30

          9  minutes of exposure changes the way the blood clots,

         10  it changes the reserve of bloodflow to the heart.

         11  You can measure the impact on a non-smoker from 30

         12  minutes of exposure. You can measure it in the

         13  blood, you can measure it in the heart.

         14                 In addition, studies on thousands of

         15  individuals who have long-term exposure to smoke in

         16  the home or workplace have shown that there's a

         17  significant increase in the risk of cancer.

         18                 The relevance of these is even more

         19  because it's a large number of people who are

         20  exposed on a regular basis, and I would say that the

         21  information that I presented earlier is new

         22  information, specific to New York City, based on a

         23  survey of 10,000 randomly selected New Yorkers, and

         24  is quite clear that there are today more than

         25  400,000 people, particularly those who are earning
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          2  less money, particularly African-Americans, Latinos

          3  and Latinas who are exposed all or most of the time

          4  to secondhand smoke. And, so, even a little bit of

          5  an increase in risk on a population basis results in

          6  a very large burden to the health of our society.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you,

          8  Commissioner.

          9                 Next question is from Council Member

         10  Reed. Yes, Council Member Reed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you. Thank

         12  you, Madam Chair.

         13                 As a member of this Committee, and

         14  as, obviously, a member of the Council, I'm pleased

         15  as we engage in this debate, at least at this

         16  juncture, those who have questions and reservation

         17  haven't been demonized. So often, you know, when

         18  there like, seems to be only one right to a

         19  question, those who are on the other side of it end

         20  up being demonized. So, I appreciate, Mr. Mayor,

         21  that so far we've tried to have a conversation here

         22  that has maintained its civility, and I'm sure as we

         23  go through this process of alternatives, amendments,

         24  whatever, we will continue at that level.

         25                 I think all of us in the Council have
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          2  served their district. I was just this morning with

          3  a large group of healthcare providers, and discussed

          4  my reservations about your bill. They're more about

          5  the reality that people as adults make choices that

          6  sometimes are not their best, and I'm not talking

          7  about the health, the people, the workers that we

          8  all understand presumably don't have that choice to

          9  make, this young woman made a choice, but it's

         10  perhaps a more difficult choice.

         11                 But smoking is legal, drinking is

         12  legal, and there is a perception that at some point

         13  where does government interact here with people's

         14  rights to be stupid, if that's how you perceive

         15  smoking, it's clear in your Administration, and I

         16  applaud Dr. Frieden's work in this area.

         17                 But if the goal we're having is to,

         18  which I think is clear, the goal of your

         19  Administration, is to stop people from smoking for

         20  their own health and for the health of everybody

         21  else, I'm curious, we had the famous tobacco

         22  settlement, and there was a significant amount of

         23  money that was to be used for prevention messages,

         24  cessation programs, all of that, in the last budget

         25  I think, and I could be wrong, I haven't had a
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          2  chance to look it up, but it was the Council that

          3  rescued any of that money. Most of that money

          4  disappeared from the budget when that was what it

          5  was targeted for. And I think you're right - I think

          6  the Health Department should be in that business. I

          7  certainly applaud, and Dr. Frieden knows it, the

          8  work around asthma. My district has the highest rate

          9  of it. The cigarette smoke exacerbates that issue.

         10  But I'm curious, if this is such an important issue,

         11  why did we take the tobacco money and not spend it

         12  to help people stop smoke?

         13                 MAYOR BLOOMBERG: Councilman Reed,

         14  sadly throughout the country very few states or

         15  municipalities that have gotten any of the tobacco

         16  settlement have used it for extensively what was the

         17  original purpose, to convince people to stop

         18  smoking.

         19                 Unfortunately, society's needs are

         20  diverse and all dollars are fungible, and so the

         21  practical reality is that people have taken the

         22  tobacco settlement monies, used them for other

         23  public purposes and, in fact, even gone and

         24  securitized the future earning stream, and spent

         25  them today so that we won't have the monies down the
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          2  road.

          3                 I will say that I'm pleased that you

          4  seem to believe that it is appropriate for us to

          5  advertise to the public the dangers of smoking.

          6  We've been criticized for a campaign that the

          7  Department of Health currently has that is trying to

          8  do that. Some people have argued that it was

          9  advocacy for legislation. The fact of the matter is,

         10  we're trying to keep people from, or at least

         11  educate them so that they can make intelligent

         12  decisions about their behavior.

         13                 This bill, however, is not designed

         14  to stop you from smoking. If you want to smoke,

         15  that's your right, and I will defend that. I don't

         16  think it's an intelligent, if that's the one you

         17  would make. The statistics are clear, you're hurting

         18  yourself very badly. But you don't have the right to

         19  hurt others. At least not in the workplace.

         20                 You really should sit there and

         21  question if you smoke at home, what about your

         22  children or spouse, or friends, or siblings, or

         23  parents? They are being hurt by your actions. But

         24  that's in the privacy of your home, and I don't

         25  think the government should get involved. This is an
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          2  issue of the workplace. And none of us really

          3  suggest that the government should not be involved,

          4  should not legislate certain minimum standards for

          5  the workplace.

          6                 Tom Frieden talked about the Triangle

          7  Shirtwaist factory tragedy. We have 400,000 people

          8  here who are exposed to secondhand smoke, and we're

          9  just trying to guarantee that people don't have to

         10  make the choice, a healthy environment or my job.

         11                 If it was asbestos in the air, nobody

         12  would suggest we shouldn't close that down

         13  instantly. The fact of the matter is, this is just

         14  as dangerous, arguably more so.

         15                 And it is an appropriate thing for

         16  this body to legislate against.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: The last

         18  question, Madam Chair, and I think it's brief --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Actually, no.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council member,

         22  only one question. Sorry. I couldn't have been ruder

         23  about that, no I just said. Sorry about that. We're

         24  just going to try to do one question to a Council

         25  member. I should have said that to begin with. I
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          2  apologize.

          3                 Council Member Dilan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair.

          6                 And, welcome, Mr. Mayor. My question

          7  is directed to Commissioner Frieden.

          8                 Under the proposed law, the proposed

          9  law would exempt retail tobacco stores from smoking

         10  prohibitions because their business is wholly

         11  comprised of the sale of tobacco. Yet, cigar bars,

         12  which the sole purpose of their business is allowing

         13  their patrons to smoke cigars would be banned; how

         14  do you explain this distinction?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Well, smoke is

         16  smoke, and people are people. So, if you start

         17  there, I think certainly we're willing to listen to

         18  concerns. We've looked at the concern on cigar bars,

         19  we've looked for suggestions on what would be

         20  specific. We've looked at the number, we can't find

         21  more than a small handful of them Citywide.

         22                 A lot of what's said about a cigar

         23  bar is simply a bar where people smoke, and there

         24  are a lot of those in New York City, and I think a

         25  large part of this legislation is to address that.
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          2                 I will note that the City of Boston,

          3  in its proposal, would address this by defining a

          4  smoking bar as a bar that gets within 90 percent or

          5  80 percent of its profits from the sale of tobacco

          6  and related products. But I think what you have out

          7  there are really bars that are bars where people

          8  smoke, and a very small portion of their income

          9  comes from the sale of tobacco and tobacco-related

         10  product. But it's something that in the free and

         11  open debate we should hear about.

         12                 The challenge, of course, is getting

         13  away from the admirable simplicity of the Nassau law

         14  which fits on one page, you get into the possibility

         15  of a legal challenge and of a loophole that creates

         16  a slippery slope that would in fact expose thousands

         17  upon thousands of workers to cancer-causing

         18  chemicals.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         20  Sanders and then we have Council Member Sears and

         21  Council Member Diaz and those are the final

         22  questions for this panel, so then the second panel

         23  that I announced before could get ready to come up

         24  immediately following Council Member Diaz', well the

         25  answer to his question.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair.

          5                 Mr. Mayor, as Chair of Economic

          6  Development for the City, I'm torn on this question.

          7  The arguments that certain businesses are coming up

          8  with, have a certain amount of power to them, yet as

          9  a former smoker, there are few people who are

         10  harsher on cigarette smoking than a former smoker.

         11                 I am glad that you were kind enough

         12  to help put a human face to this dilemma, that

         13  perhaps is the difference. I'm looking to hear more

         14  assurances that this will not hurt the economy of

         15  New York.

         16                 MAYOR BLOOMBERG: Well, I don't think

         17  anybody suggests that if you can't smoke you'll stop

         18  eating, or in fact if you can't smoke you'll stop

         19  drinking. If I owned a bar I would love to have this

         20  legislation passed because I would be making my

         21  money based on how much alcohol is consumed, and if

         22  people aren't smoking, they'll probably be drinking

         23  more. And in fact, if you take a look --

         24                 (Outburst from the audience.)

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Are you
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          2  advocating that, sir?

          3                 MAYOR BLOOMBERG: I'm not advocating

          4  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Could you quiet

          6  the Chambers, please.

          7                 MAYOR BLOOMBERG: If you go and take a

          8  look at what happened in California, that's exactly

          9  what did happen. People started to consume more.

         10                 I think the issue for bar and

         11  restaurant owners --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry, Mr.

         13  Mayor.

         14                 People who are screaming and who are

         15  shouting out, I need to very clearly give you a

         16  warning. If that does not stop, you will be asked to

         17  leave the Chambers. I want this to note as a

         18  warning. Please control yourselves.

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         20  AUDIENCE: You've got your mind made up already. It's

         21  propaganda. Propaganda. Don't pay no use to it. It's

         22  ridiculous.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Please continue,

         24  Mr. Mayor. Thank you.

         25                 MAYOR BLOOMBERG: The issue that most
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          2  owners of bars and restaurants -- (applause).

          3                 The issue that most owners of bars

          4  and restaurants have is they want the ban to be

          5  complete, because otherwise they're not playing on a

          6  level playing field.

          7                 It may be that they had an advantage.

          8  Danny Meyers who owns arguably two or three of the

          9  best restaurants in the City said to me yesterday

         10  when I had lunch at Grammercy Tavern -- Union

         11  Square. I'm sorry, Union Square Cafe, that he thinks

         12  if we pass this he's going to lose one of his

         13  advantages. When he stopped smoking in his

         14  restaurant, his business went up, not down.

         15                 Nassau County has given us a unique

         16  opportunity. West Chester and Suffolk and Jim

         17  McGreavey has talked about New Jersey, the more

         18  municipalities and states and counties that pass

         19  similar legislation, the less worry it is to bar

         20  owners and restaurants that their clientele will go

         21  elsewhere.

         22                 The fact of the matter is, I listed a

         23  whole bunch of things, places where we banned

         24  smoking, people didn't stop going to baseball games

         25  because they couldn't smoke in Yankee Stadium or
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          2  Shea Stadium, people didn't stop going to movie

          3  theaters because they couldn't smoke in movie

          4  theaters anymore, 55 percent of all the restaurants

          5  in New York City are smoke-free. There isn't one

          6  that would tell you because they don't smoke they've

          7  lost any business. Quite the contrary. They don't

          8  like the hassle of having to have -- some people

          9  want a smoking area, some people not, and none of

         10  them like the liability of having their employees

         11  down the road come back and sue them because they

         12  did not provide a safe environment.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         14  Sears and then Council Member Diaz, which will be

         15  our final question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair. Thank you, Mr. Mayor, for being here,

         18  and testifying on such an important issue.

         19                 My question is really for Dr. Varmus.

         20                 In your work and being the recipient

         21  of a very prestigious Nobel Prize, my question is

         22  that Western Europe, Canada, have taken on a

         23  movement to look for allies that could support those

         24  countries globally looking to have a smoke-free

         25  environment. In your research, in your experience,
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          2  have you found that to be so? And if so, why has

          3  Europe been pursuing this, and Canada?

          4                 DR. VARMUS: I'm sorry, Ma'am, I don't

          5  really understand the question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right. In

          7  Canada and in Western Europe, it's my understanding

          8  that globally they're looking for allies who support

          9  their smoke-free environment policy. It has also

         10  affected their health programs in those countries,

         11  and it is my understanding that in Canada some of

         12  the doctors have been refusing to treat patients who

         13  smoke.

         14                 I have just come back from Canada and

         15  in Parliament this is what the programs and what

         16  they were addressing.

         17                 My question to you is, in your

         18  research that you have done, in receiving the Nobel

         19  Prize, which certainly had to expand what you were

         20  doing, have you found this to be so? To your

         21  knowledge, is Europe literally pursuing having some

         22  smoke-free environments? And why are they pursuing

         23  it?

         24                 DR. VARMUS: Well, this is not the

         25  area of my research, but let me try to answer the
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          2  question as best I can.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Sure.

          4                 DR. VARMUS: I appreciate the

          5  attention.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

          7                 DR. VARMUS: First of all, to my

          8  knowledge, I don't know of any doctors who have

          9  refused to treat patients because they smoke. That

         10  certainly is a policy which is antithetical to the

         11  tradition of medical care.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         13                 DR. VARMUS: Secondly, yes, there are

         14  in all these countries movements to try to reduce

         15  exposure to smoke and reduce the habit of smoking

         16  and those movements have been only partially

         17  successful. As we all know, one finds a healthier

         18  environment in California than one does in Paris in

         19  most restaurants and bars, but the efforts to make

         20  an international effort are frankly impeded

         21  frequently in certain countries by the interest of

         22  tobacco companies or governments that see the

         23  importance of tobacco revenues.

         24                 So, there is opposition frequently

         25  between those who desire the best that we can offer
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          2  to the population at risk, which is what we're

          3  trying to achieve with this measure, than those who

          4  have vested financial interest that seem to proceed

          5  in a manner oblivious to the public health needs of

          6  the country.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          9                 Council Member Reverend Diaz, please.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIAZ: Thank you, Madam

         11  Chairlady.

         12                 Mr. Mayor and members of the panel,

         13  someone said before that cigarettes are legal, that

         14  drinking beers are legal, and I agree with that. But

         15  let me cite some biblical passage from the Book of

         16  Roman, Chapter 14. The apostle said, "All things are

         17  permittable, but not all things are good for me."

         18                 So, I represent the South Bronx,

         19  where the majority of the residents are Hispanic and

         20  Black. The South Bronx, especially the area of

         21  Osborn (phonetic), has the greater rate of asthma.

         22  And I was not too apt to talk today, but after

         23  listening to the lady, I decided that I would like

         24  to put my two cents in.

         25                 Our people, black and Hispanic, in my
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          2  district in the South Bronx, are dying of cancer,

          3  asthma and of hard diseases. There are too many days

          4  that I as a minister spend in the hospital for

          5  basically the dying, and praying for sick people.

          6  Something has to be done to save some lives.

          7                 Therefore, Mr. Mayor, it's an honor

          8  for me to joint you in this Intro., and I support it

          9  with all my heart. Congratulations, Mr. Mayor.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank you

         11  very much, Mr. Mayor, Mr. Frieden. Thank you all

         12  very much.

         13                 We're now going to hear from Jim

         14  McBratney, Kevin Shaw, Ciaran Staunton, Alan

         15  Londonin and George Wachtel. They will be followed

         16  by, the third panel will be Dennis Rivera, Andrew

         17  Hyland, Jim Neary, Carl Redding and Alison Jolicaor,

         18  who I apologize for mispronouncing your name.

         19                 I know that Mr. Wachtel will be here

         20  in a minute and will join the panel in process, but

         21  the rest of you are all here; is that right? Ready

         22  to begin?

         23                 There should be Jim McBratney, Kevin

         24  Shaw, Ciaran Staunton, Al Londonon and George

         25  Wachtel. Mr. Wachtel should be here in a minute.
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          2                 Okay, great. Start in whatever order

          3  you'd like. Please identify yourself for the record

          4  before you start, and there is a three-minute time

          5  limit.

          6                 Go right ahead. If the light isn't

          7  on, then the mic is. Right.

          8                 MR. McBRATNEY: Distinguished members

          9  of the City Council, my name is James McBratney, I

         10  am the proprietor of two small restaurants on Staten

         11  Island, as well as the president of the Staten

         12  Island, as well as the president of the Staten

         13  Island Restaurant and Tavern Association.

         14                 I am very active, both in civic and

         15  community matters in my neighborhood, serving on the

         16  boards of the YMCA, the GRACE Foundation for Autism

         17  and the PTA of my son's school.

         18                 I am no exception among

         19  restaurateurs, most if not all of my colleagues

         20  serve their communities in some way. My former board

         21  affiliations include the Staten Island Children's

         22  Museum and the New York Lung Association.

         23                 I left the New York Lung Association,

         24  not because of ideological reasons, but for lack of

         25  time. In fact, I am still an anti-smoking advocate.
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          2                 In 1995 I spoke before this body in

          3  favor of the Clean Air Act. My restaurant, Jimmy

          4  Max, was smoke-free for over one year before the

          5  legislation passed.

          6                 During the past eight years, I've

          7  noticed that all smokers have learned to live with

          8  the fact that they need to go to the bar between

          9  courses to have a cigarette.

         10                 I am sure most wish they did not have

         11  this terrible addiction to nicotine, but they do,

         12  and they are provided with a place to smoke in my

         13  bar.

         14                 We all know by now that if cigarettes

         15  contained only the naturally occurring levels of

         16  nicotine, it would be far easier to quit smoking.

         17  The tobacco companies have made sure that cigarettes

         18  contain elevated levels of nicotine and therefore

         19  make it far more difficult, if not impossible, to

         20  quit.

         21                 If we do not plan on outlawing

         22  tobacco, or mandating big tobacco to reduce nicotine

         23  levels in cigarettes, then how can we not provide

         24  smokers with a place to smoke?

         25                 Do we really need more government
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          2  control and involvement in citizens lives?

          3                 I am not arguing that my employees

          4  health should be secondary to feeding the smoking

          5  public's addiction. I just feel that this bill, as

          6  written, goes too far and is too broad based.

          7                 I feel that the Mayor has not

          8  explored the options of mandatory ventilation

          9  thoroughly.

         10                 There is another unforeseen but very

         11  real problem with this legislation, and that is just

         12  how do we keep the night silent, if there are droves

         13  of people wishing to exit the bar to smoke?

         14                 My restaurant Jimmy Max is in the

         15  middle of Westerleigh, a quiet town in Staten

         16  Island, formerly known as Prohibition Park. Mine is

         17  one of the few commercially zoned lots in the entire

         18  community, when in 1989 I opened the bar and

         19  restaurant, neighbors were less than welcoming. My

         20  immediate neighbor to the rear announced on opening

         21  night "I will not rest until you go out of

         22  business." I am operating in the middle of hostile

         23  territory and all she will need is an excuse to call

         24  the noise police and perhaps have her dream come

         25  true.
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          2                 These two pieces of legislation are

          3  diametrically opposed and cannot coexist. The

          4  restaurant business is my life's passion. I love the

          5  pace, I love the people, and I certainly don't mind

          6  hard work and long hours. My businesses, like all of

          7  the member restaurants of the Staten Island

          8  Restaurant and Tavern Association are family owned

          9  and operated.

         10                 Our industry is among the top three

         11  employers on Staten Island, and I would hate to see

         12  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Could you wrap up,

         14  please?

         15                 MR. McBRATNEY: Thank you.

         16                 And I will hate to see any

         17  contraction in our industry now. People who are in

         18  favor of this bill will tell you there is no

         19  economic impact on the restaurant industry, I'd like

         20  to see their crystal ball.

         21                 Considering the present economy, is

         22  this a chance we can afford to take? If we were to

         23  give Mayor Bloomberg a hatchet and a bible, he could

         24  assume the role of a present day Carrie Nation. He

         25  has launched a prohibitionist attack on smokers. He
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          2  will not rest until this plague has been eradicated

          3  from society. Legislation --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you sum up,

          5  Mr. McBratney?

          6                 MR. McBRATNEY: -- Is an ineffective

          7  way to dictate human behavior, especially if society

          8  does not universally regard the behavior as

          9  undesirable.

         10                 I just have one point I'd like to

         11  make in direct response to Mr. Mayor's, Mr.

         12  Bloomberg's testimony. He said that if he owned a

         13  bar this legislation would be welcomed. However,

         14  presently if it were such a sound practice, why

         15  wouldn't there be many, many more nonsmoking bars in

         16  the City?

         17                 And I'd also like to bring everyone's

         18  attention to the quote on the ceiling --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Please.

         20                 MR. McBRATNEY: This is not a

         21  government of Mike, by Mike and for Mike.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 The clock is going now for the second

         24  witness.

         25                 MR. SHAW: Good morning. My name is
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          2  Kevin Shaw. I currently bartend on Staten Island. I

          3  have been in the club, lounge, bar, restaurant

          4  business in some aspects since 1987.

          5                 I'm a little surprised to find myself

          6  expressing my opinions, as bartenders typically

          7  don't have an opinion.

          8                 Unfortunately, I do have an opinion

          9  regarding the proposed smoking ban.

         10                 My goal is not to waste the Council's

         11  valuable time with a long-winded argument that you

         12  most likely have heard, therefore, I have outlined

         13  several topics that I feel will be severely impacted

         14  by this proposed ban.

         15                 The majority of our customers are

         16  smokers. Some customers have made it very clear that

         17  they will not patronize an establishment that does

         18  not welcome them. That will impact sales which will

         19  hurt the owner, or hurt the server. Less customers

         20  mean less tips, or hurt the distributor moving less

         21  product. It will also hurt the state, loss of sales

         22  tax, possible increase in unemployment due to lost

         23  jobs, many others along the chain will also be

         24  affected.

         25                 Bartenders work in this environment
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          2  by choice. We choose to for various reasons -

          3  flexible schedules, friendly atmosphere. Primarily

          4  it is financial. You make money based on volume.

          5  This ban will destroy that volume. And in an economy

          6  already sagging, can we afford to hurt small

          7  businesses and the people they employ any further. I

          8  bartend by choice, I hope to open my own place in

          9  the future, and networking is essential. No other

         10  job will give the hands-on experience or the

         11  financial windfall to facilitate that dream.

         12                 Thirty to 50 people will be filing

         13  out of the establishment every five, ten, 15 minutes

         14  to have a smoke. In a commercial district, that will

         15  be fine. But what about the residential areas where

         16  neighbors will be awakened by chatty smokers outside

         17  the bar?

         18                 Who will be responsible for policing

         19  these people? Bartenders? I got out of bouncing

         20  years ago because I didn't want confrontation.

         21  That's going to happen again when this ban does come

         22  to fruition.

         23                 Will the establishment be issued a

         24  disorderly premise or disorderly conduct summons

         25  because people are following the law and smoking
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          2  outside?

          3                 It is common to be refused entrance

          4  to bars and clubs in New York City for various

          5  reason or for no reason. Imagine being told you

          6  can't go outside and smoke, there are too many

          7  people outside already? Will the SLA revoke their

          8  liquor license after too many noise complaints,

          9  pushing more people out of work, generating less

         10  taxable income and sales tax revenue?

         11                 Will it be a crime to smoke in a bar

         12  if this bill is passed? If so, then won't the police

         13  have to enforce it? Isn't our Police Department

         14  already overburdened already? Won't their resources

         15  be spent better elsewhere?

         16                 Which means enforcement, again, will

         17  fall to the owner or the bartender. The bartender

         18  goes from a neutral position to an adversarial one.

         19  Will bartenders be tying up 911 for someone who is

         20  breaking the law? It may sound foolish but it must

         21  be diligently enforced, it will have no credibility.

         22                 As bad as smoking may be, what's the

         23  alternative? Government making more decisions for

         24  us?

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          3                 Go ahead. Press the button.

          4                 MR. STAUNTON: Good afternoon, Madam

          5  Chairperson. Good afternoon, Mr. Speaker. Good

          6  afternoon, Counselors. My name is Ciaran Staunton.

          7  And before I start, can I just for the record say

          8  that the Mayor had said that the people testifying

          9  against bill are on the payroll of cigarette

         10  companies. I am not on the payroll of any cigarette

         11  company. The only people I represent at this meeting

         12  here today, Mr. Mayor, is my wife and two children.

         13  I make no apologies about it to anyone. Thank you.

         14                 Together with my wife, Orlaith, I own

         15  a small bar restaurant called O'Neill's on Third

         16  Avenue in Manhattan. We have been in business for

         17  over five years. Often you can find us working 16

         18  hours a day, seven days a week often. I am here to

         19  ask this Committee to leave the current smoking bill

         20  as it stands. A complete ban on smoking I believe

         21  will put many of the smaller businesses, bar

         22  businesses like ours, out of business.

         23                 This in turn will create unemployment

         24  and hardship on many young families who depend on

         25  the bar/restaurant business in New York City
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          2  neighborhoods.

          3                 There should not be a complete ban on

          4  smoking in small bars as being recommended by Mayor

          5  Bloomberg.

          6                 If New York City were to pass a

          7  smoking ban in those places, it would not just put

          8  my establishment out of business, it would also

          9  deprive my family of their livelihood.

         10                 There has been much debate on how the

         11  smoking ban would affect bars and restaurants in New

         12  York City.

         13                 Mayor Bloomberg, interestingly

         14  enough, says that we'll get new customers if we

         15  don't allow smoking. That means what we get rid of

         16  our current customers in hope of getting potential

         17  customers. Do they teach that in business school?

         18                 I have admired Mayor Bloomberg as a

         19  businessman. I believe he's a brilliant businessman.

         20  But he knows absolutely nothing about the bar

         21  business.

         22                 I have worked in bar business in

         23  California. My younger brother still bartends in San

         24  Francisco, and the last several weeks I've been in

         25  contact with him, and many of my friends and
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          2  acquaintances who are in the bar business out there,

          3  what they have told me about the effect of the

          4  smoking ban on small business out there is what made

          5  me come here today to testify.

          6                 Business is down an average of 20

          7  percent in taverns and small bar/restaurants similar

          8  to my own. Some bars have already gone out of

          9  business. Others are limping along. A 20 percent

         10  drop, and my business will be closed in three

         11  months.

         12                 My family's future, as well as the

         13  future of my employees, would be ruined.

         14                 Madam Chairperson, many of the people

         15  you see here today who are opposed to any change in

         16  the current laws are not the owners of large

         17  restaurant chains, they're not the owner of

         18  fine-dining establishments. You don't read about

         19  them in the gossip pages of the newspapers. On the

         20  contrary, the people who are going to be most

         21  affected by the complete ban on smoking in bars are

         22  people like me. The average tavern owner, the

         23  average bar owner lives in the neighborhoods of

         24  Bronx, Queens, Staten Island or Manhattan. We are

         25  active in the community where we live and operate
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          2  our business.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mr. Staunton, if

          4  you could sum up?

          5                 MR. STAUNTON: Just one second. Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          7                 MR. STAUNTON: Mayor Giuliani has said

          8  recently when addressing the issue of the current

          9  law, I think the legislation that currently exists

         10  seems to be working quite well. I agree with the

         11  Mayor.

         12                 If I may make one final point, Madam

         13  Chairwoman. People who want to smoke in their

         14  restaurant right now can do so. People who don't

         15  want to smoke can do so. And people who want to work

         16  in a smoking establishment can, or if they want to

         17  work in a non-smoking establishment, they can also

         18  do so.

         19                 The Mayor has testified that there

         20  are thousands of non-smoking restaurants in New

         21  York. I think he said 55 percent of restaurants are

         22  non-smoking. Those who don't want to smoke, work in

         23  a smoking environment can do so. Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.
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          2                 Next witness, please.

          3                 MR. LONDONO: Good afternoon. My name

          4  is Al Londono. I operate two small restaurants in

          5  the Borough of Queens. I have been in business in

          6  1964 and I see that I'm here not getting paid by

          7  tobacco companies. I'm here on my own, representing

          8  my own place, and representing the businesses and

          9  business people in my neighborhood. Unfortunately,

         10  they all not in here, because they all work in

         11  lunches. We all small business owners who can't

         12  afford to be at this place at this moment.

         13                 And the second place, the more I talk

         14  to my colleagues about this bill, the more I hear

         15  that will be closing up of businesses in about three

         16  to four months down the line.

         17                 No more -- we have enough burdens,

         18  with all the licenses for SLA, with Health

         19  Department, DOT, Fire Department, to deal with

         20  another problem with smoking in our public areas. At

         21  least give us a chance to work. And those who care

         22  to smoke at the bar or designated areas, let them do

         23  so. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Has Mr. Wachtel

         25  arrived? No, okay. Well, we'll do what we can to
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          2  accommodate him later, if possible.

          3                 Council Member Brewer had a question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes. Thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 I think for Mr. Staunton. I am a

          7  supporter of this bill but I have a lot of

          8  understanding about what you're saying, and like

          9  you, I contacted friends who own bars in California,

         10  and what they told me is -- these are people who

         11  have bars in California and bars in New York, so

         12  there's a comparison -- in New York they have

         13  smoking, and in California they don't. And they

         14  actually prefer no smoking. They feel that they're

         15  making good money in California, and they feel that

         16  people can go outside and smoke.

         17                 Now, arguably in California the

         18  weather is nicer, and there's a whole year, although

         19  with the ozone layer, looks like we're not having

         20  snow either.

         21                 But my point is, do you think that

         22  the concept of going outside is really such a

         23  hindrance? I know that there's a concern about the

         24  neighborhood, but it does seem to me that it is

         25  working in California, and that people are making
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          2  money.

          3                 So, I just want to know how you think

          4  that would work here, given your constraints?

          5                 MR. STAUNTON: Well, Council Member,

          6  it depends on who you're talking to. The people I

          7  have talked to in the small neighborhood bars and

          8  taverns are not making money.

          9                 There is a quote in last week's Irish

         10  Echo from a gentleman who had a number of bars. His

         11  income is down 20 percent. So, he obviously wouldn't

         12  trade places with someone else.

         13                 The idea of people going outside on

         14  the streets, and let me just tell you what happened

         15  with a gentleman in California, when he was not

         16  enforcing the smoking ban, the Health Department was

         17  coming in and writing him up tickets from people

         18  smoking on his premises, when he put them outside to

         19  smoke the Police Department came and write him

         20  citations for having them smoke outside and causing

         21  disturbance.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mr. Wachtel has

         24  arrived, so I'm going to just allow him to testify

         25  now for three minutes, and then the three other
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          2  Council members who have questions will go after

          3  that.

          4                 Thank you, everyone.

          5                 MR. WACHTEL: On the way here I was

          6  marveling at the wonderful transportation system of

          7  New York, how I got from the Intrepid Museum to

          8  Madame Tuso's to City Hall, and then I got on the W

          9  and it's an express. So, I apologize.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's okay. Go

         11  right ahead, you have three minutes.

         12                 MR. WACHTEL: My name is George

         13  Wachtel, and I am President of Audience Research and

         14  Analysis, a market research and economic analysis

         15  firm in New York City. Some of our clients include

         16  the Alliance for Downtown New York, the Upper

         17  Manhattan Empowerment Zone and NYC and Company.

         18                 The New York Nightlife Association

         19  retained us to conduct on-site surveys at nightlife

         20  venues in Manhattan.

         21                 Between Thursday, October 3rd and

         22  Tuesday, October 8th, attendees at ten venues were

         23  interviewed by our staff regarding their smoking

         24  habits and perspective reaction to the pending

         25  legislative extension, a total of 1,043 interviews
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          2  were completed across five evenings, Thursday,

          3  Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Tuesday nights.

          4                 The key findings, and then I will

          5  tell you how they were derived.  The key findings

          6  were among customers and clubs and bars, 21 percent

          7  would spend less time, and presumably less money, if

          8  smoking were banned. Of current nightlife patrons,

          9  nine percent would stop coming to clubs and bars in

         10  New York City entirely. And 52 percent of the club

         11  and bar patrons who smoke said they would go outside

         12  on the street to smoke.

         13                 Now, more specifically, the survey

         14  found that 41 percent of all patrons considered

         15  themselves to be smokers and smoked in clubs and

         16  bars.

         17                 The percentage of individual venues,

         18  because we surveyed ten of them, was as low as 24

         19  percent, and as high as 59 percent. Some of it had

         20  to do with the night of the week, the time of the

         21  day, things like that.

         22                 If smoking were no longer permitted

         23  in clubs and bars, more than half of those who smoke

         24  would go outside on the street to smoke. More than

         25  one-fifth would no longer patronize New York City
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          2  clubs and bars. Here are the figures:

          3                 Twenty-seven percent would not smoke

          4  on the nights they went to a club or bar.

          5                 Fifty-two percent would go outside on

          6  the street to smoke.

          7                 Twelve percent would stop going to

          8  clubs and bars entirely, and nine percent would seek

          9  out venues outside of New York City.

         10                 That's approximately one out of five

         11  people who would not being going to the clubs,

         12  leaving about four out of five people, 79 percent.

         13                 Among those 79 percent of smokers who

         14  would either not smoke or smoke on the street, 50

         15  percent said that they would spend less time at the

         16  clubs if smoking was banned. And here again are the

         17  exact results: 50 percent said less time; five

         18  percent said more time, ten to one ratio; and 45

         19  percent said about the same.

         20                 So, in summary, four out of ten of

         21  nightlife patrons consider themselves to be smokers.

         22  Not just smoke at a club, consider themselves to be

         23  smokers.

         24                 One-half of those smokers would head

         25  for the street to smoke if indoor smoking was
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          2  banned. Two out of ten would avoid New York City

          3  nightlife venues entirely, and of the eight out of

          4  ten who would continue to frequent New York City

          5  venues, 50 percent would spend less time in clubs

          6  and bars, if smoking was banned.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          9                 If I could just ask, not today, but

         10  at some point, if you could submit to the Committee,

         11  and I could have staff give you the address, all of

         12  the information regarding that survey.

         13                 MR. WACHTEL: I have ten copies here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, great. The

         15  Sergeant will come around and get it from you. Okay,

         16  thank you.

         17                 Council Member Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         19  Chair. If I could just preface my question with a

         20  statement, Mr. McBratney are Staten Islanders,

         21  clearly on the opposite sides of this issue, but

         22  along with John Mulvey from Staten Island, we've

         23  been in constant contact, and those two gentlemen

         24  have indeed been that. They've been gentlemen and

         25  there are lots of passion on both sides, but they
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          2  conducted themselves in a wonderful manner, and I

          3  appreciate that, and I hope everyone on both sides

          4  of the issue will follow the tone that you've set.

          5                 The interesting point to make, Jim

          6  McBratney made, that he was here in 1995, and some

          7  of us were, and it is looking up at the gallery sort

          8  of deja vu, but I was interested to hear Ciaran

          9  mention the quote from Mayor Giuliani and talking

         10  about how this current law works so well.

         11                 So the record is straight, that

         12  current law was not embraced at the time. At the

         13  time, the industry came in and said it would be the

         14  end of the economic world as we knew it. At that

         15  time, there was testimony about thousands of job

         16  loss, and there was testimony about how tourism

         17  would end for New York City. So, it's interesting to

         18  hear the industry, the same industry that assailed

         19  that legislation now believes it's a great piece of

         20  legislation. It's kind of interesting to see how far

         21  we've come in less than a decade.

         22                 My question, I guess it was answered

         23  in part by the survey, is, if you could just

         24  articulate the economic loss argument a little bit

         25  better for me. Is it the assertion of the industry
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          2  that your bar will suffer because people will simply

          3  stop going to your establishment?

          4                 MR. McBRATNEY: I honestly believe

          5  that it's an unknown. We have economists who can

          6  come up with figures, the Mayor has economists with

          7  figures. If I had the Mayor's net worth I wouldn't

          8  be here testifying today. It's a matter of it's an

          9  unknown and it's a scary world when competition is

         10  so stiff, there are Applebees and Chilis and all

         11  these chains opening in our backyard, and it's a

         12  very scary situation. It's an unknown, and like I

         13  said, the crystal ball that the people are looking

         14  at that are projecting economic stability is not

         15  good enough for me.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And let me just

         17  say, I do not --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry, Council

         19  member. No follow-ups.

         20                 Council Member Sears.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chair.

         23                 I just want to recognize Mr. Londono,

         24  who is in my district and has been a businessman for

         25  many, many years, who is a community activist, and
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          2  who has contributed greatly to community activities,

          3  and your being here is taking time away from your

          4  business, and I thank you for that.

          5                 My question is, any one of you, I

          6  know that Mr. Londono doesn't, do any of you have an

          7  entirely smoke-free environment? Meaning that you

          8  don't have an area where they can smoke?

          9                 You mentioned, I think, I was looking

         10  that you had a smoke-free a year before it went in.

         11  What do you have now?

         12                 MR. McBRATNEY: My entire dining room

         13  is smoke-free. My establishment is comprised of

         14  three separate addresses, one of those addresses is

         15  my bar area that is completely separate from the

         16  rest of the dining room, separately ventilated, and

         17  it is completely separate with the exception of a

         18  four-foot walkway that goes through the dining room

         19  through to the bar.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. Which

         21  section gets used more than another?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         23  Sears, I'm sorry.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, sorry

         25  about that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We are keeping it

          3  to one question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: One thing that is

          6  clear is all of my colleagues are not going to like

          7  me after this hearing, but I'm trying to be across

          8  the board.

          9                 Council Member Nelson, and then

         10  Council Member Vallone and that will be the final

         11  question for this panel.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 Just briefly, ironically I was next

         15  door at a Committee on Environmental Protection, so

         16  I might have missed if this question was addressed.

         17  So, if it was asked and answered, we'll pass.

         18                 But the Mayor mentioned that there

         19  were moderate costs involved with outfitting your

         20  establishment with the ventilation system to remove

         21  smoke. Is that a correct statement, moderate cost?

         22                 MR. McBRATNEY: I'm sorry?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: About how much

         24  was it to equip your restaurant, if you did, with a

         25  ventilation system that would suck out the smoke?
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          2                 MR. McBRATNEY: I personally about ten

          3  years ago installed two smoke-eaters at a cost of

          4  $1,500 each.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay, that

          6  would be moderate. Would the other gentlemen here

          7  agree?

          8                 MR. STAUNTON: I put mine in, it cost

          9  almost $20,000.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay, because

         11  I have heard that in the past. Thank you.

         12                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         14                 Council Member Vallone.

         15                 This bill puts me in an unusual

         16  position - on the one hand I represent a district, a

         17  heavily European with a very vocal minority of

         18  smokers. The reason the exemption exists, the under

         19  35 exemption, is because of the person who formerly

         20  represented my district, and the architect of the

         21  bill, which James Oddo says works so well, but was

         22  opposed.

         23                 On the other hand, I have lost two

         24  family members to lung cancer, and one was just

         25  diagnosed a few weeks ago, and not given long to
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          2  live. I am on this bill. I will support whatever

          3  version my Speaker puts before me. I am not adverse

          4  to compromise. Is there a compromise that you could

          5  suggest?

          6                 MR. STAUNTON: Council Member Vallone,

          7  I think we have to look at anything that's going to

          8  keep our business going. The most important thing

          9  for me is to keep my family business going, keep my

         10  two children looked after and my wife. Whatever they

         11  come back with, of course we have work with it. The

         12  only thing is that this current bill will put me out

         13  of business. Something that's going to keep me in

         14  business, that's my main problem.

         15                 MR. McBRATNEY: Could I address that?

         16  May I?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes.

         18                 MR. McBRATNEY: I think that, well, I

         19  speak for myself and membership of over 100

         20  restaurants and taverns on Staten Island, and we are

         21  in full concurrence that anything that will still

         22  allow smoking in the bar we would agree to. The

         23  under 35 exemption, separation and ventilation,

         24  whatever this body comes up with and still allows

         25  smoking in the bar areas, our entire membership --
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          2  now I only speak for the Borough of Staten Island,

          3  but our entire membership is agreeable to anything

          4  that would retain smoking in the bar only.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 Thank you all very much for

          8  testifying.

          9                 MR. STAUNTON: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We're next going

         11  to hear from Dennis Rivera, Andrew Hyland, Jim

         12  Neary, Carl Redding, Alison Jolocor and

         13  Assemblymember Peter Grannis. That panel will be

         14  followed by -- the panel after that is made up of

         15  Joseph Spinnato of the Hotel Association, Chuck Hunt

         16  of the New York Restaurant Association, and Brian

         17  O'Dwyer of O'Dwyer and Bernstein. So, please be

         18  ready.

         19                 Okay, if the members of this panel

         20  could make their way up to the front. If the

         21  Chambers could try to do it quietly, so we could

         22  keep the other panels going. Thank you.

         23                 If anyone has written testimony, they

         24  should just give it to Jerry, one of our terrific

         25  Sergeants, and they will make sure it gets to all of
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          2  the Council Members. Great. And the panel could

          3  testify in whatever order you'd like. Just make sure

          4  you identify yourself for the record before you

          5  talk.

          6                 Thank you. If the light is off, the

          7  mic is on. It's kind of counter-intuitive.

          8                 MR. RIVERA: Good afternoon. My name

          9  is Dennis Rivera, and I am President of the 1199

         10  SEIU New York Health and Human Service Union.

         11                 1199 SEIU represents more than

         12  220,000 Health Care Workers who work in hospitals,

         13  nursing homes, clinics and private homes throughout

         14  New York City and New York State.

         15                 Our members see the consequences of

         16  secondhand smoke on a daily basis.

         17                 Tobacco smoking is a major cause of

         18  heart disease, throat, lung cancer and respiratory

         19  disease, and exposure to smoke worsens the medical

         20  conditions of patients with literally hundreds of

         21  other diseases and ailments.

         22                 Our hospitals and our nursing homes

         23  are filled with these patients. 1199 SEIU home care

         24  workers, 10,000 or more people, who are not

         25  institutioned but are homebound due to
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          2  smoking-related incidents.

          3                 But you do not need to work in health

          4  care to know that smoking has a huge impact on our

          5  health care system. Every one of us is affected by

          6  it. All of us pay for it. We pay for it with higher

          7  health care costs, and we pay for it because tens of

          8  thousands of New Yorkers are disabled from injuries

          9  due to smoking and secondhand smoke, and all of

         10  those people have to be cared for.

         11                 New York City already protects most

         12  workers from the hazards of secondhand smoke, and

         13  the legislation before you today will go a long way

         14  towards ensuring that many thousands of other

         15  workers in the City bars and nightclubs are not

         16  forced to breathe the air of smoke-filled rooms.

         17                 The workers in these places are not

         18  provided with the same protections as the rest of

         19  us, and to suggest that these workers are given a

         20  choice about the issue is not true.

         21                 In today's economy no one can be

         22  presumed to be able to work wherever they would

         23  like, let alone have the luxury of choosing the

         24  level of dangers on the job, for most of the

         25  thousands of unskilled workers who bus the tables,
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          2  sweep the floors and clean the ashtrays in New York

          3  nightclubs and bars, jobs are almost very easy to

          4  come by, and there is virtually no control over the

          5  working environment.

          6                 The protections of workers from

          7  dangerous and exploitive working conditions is one

          8  of the fundamental jobs of good government. We don't

          9  allow employers to force the workers to risk their

         10  lives or health simply because it's more convenient

         11  or cheaper for the employer.

         12                 Smoking is not an occupational hazard

         13  that must be endured in any workplace. Nightclubs

         14  and bars can go right on providing their services

         15  without exposing the workers to hazardous air. On

         16  behalf of more than 200,000 workers who care very

         17  much about the health of all New Yorkers, I urge you

         18  to pass this important legislation.

         19                 Thank you so very much for your time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         21                 And you have the honor of being the

         22  first witness who finished with time to spare.

         23                 MR. RIVERA: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I don't know how

         25  to clear this here.
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          2                 MR. REDDING: Good afternoon, members

          3  of the Council.

          4                 My name is Carl Redding. I'm the

          5  owner and the chef of one of New York's hottest and

          6  most trendiest southern cuisine restaurant in New

          7  York. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you do say so

          9  yourself.

         10                 MR. REDDING: If I must say myself,

         11  that's correct.

         12                 The restaurant guide says that we are

         13  the number one southern cuisine restaurant in New

         14  York. We are 100 percent smoke-free and my business

         15  couldn't be any better. (applause.)

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: People, you're

         17  just cutting into the speaker's time.

         18                 MR. REDDING: In fact, I believe that

         19  being smoke-free is one of the secrets of our

         20  success at Amy Ruth's restaurant.

         21                 Let's just take a look at the

         22  benefits that I incur. I save money on cleaning

         23  bills towards my restaurant, I have fewer sick

         24  employees sick days. I have lower insurance costs

         25  due to healthier employees. Families can visit my
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          2  restaurant and know that it's smoke-free. I have the

          3  pleasure of knowing that I'm not making my employees

          4  sick by allowing smoking in my restaurant.

          5                 What responsible employer would want

          6  to expose my workers to carcinogenic air? Amy Ruth's

          7  is smoke-free and thriving. I encourage all

          8  restauteurs, employers, to make their restaurants

          9  and bars smoke-free, and I encourage the City

         10  Council to pass the legislation that would help them

         11  to do it.

         12                 I also just want to say, you know,

         13  that that was, what I just said was read, but I

         14  think that it's a sad day in America when we have to

         15  sit here to really discuss the dangerous of what

         16  smoking can do to us, especially to our employees.

         17                 My restaurant has been smoke-free for

         18  over three years now. We've never allowed smoking, I

         19  have never smoked in my life. Some of you here, I

         20  recognize some of you are smokers and you do come to

         21  our restaurant and even though we don't allow it,

         22  you step outside and you have your cigarette. So, I

         23  don't think that it interferes with the economic

         24  situation of a particular of a restaurant or a bar.

         25  So, City Council members, there are 400,000 votes
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          2  out there, if you pass this law barring cigarette

          3  smoking in these establishments, and I encourage you

          4  to go ahead and to pass this legislation. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And

          6  before the next witness testifies, I just would like

          7  to announce that we've been joined by Council Member

          8  Allan Jennings from Queens, Council Member Dennis

          9  Gallagher also from Queens, Council Member Eric

         10  Gioia also from Queens, one big train that got in

         11  all at the same time, and Council Member Margarita

         12  Lopez from Manhattan. Whoever would like to be third

         13  could go right ahead. Thank you.

         14                 MR. NEARY: My name is Jim Neary, and

         15  I own Neary's Restaurant on 57th Street. I've been

         16  there for 36 years. I am non-smoking since 1995, and

         17  I want to tell this Council, when I went

         18  non-smoking, because I have an Irish place, I got

         19  clobbered. I really did. And a lot of my friends

         20  said we will never darken your door. A lot of them

         21  walked out, never came back.

         22                 My own two daughters, they have

         23  brilliant daughters in their own life, but help me

         24  on the weekends, and they used to say, Dad, please,

         25  please, let them smoke. They were afraid I was going
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          2  to lose my entire business.

          3                 I got clobbered. I stuck it out. As I

          4  say, I'm smoke-free now from 1995, seven or eight

          5  years. Gradually people came back. Some of the

          6  smokers never came back, because they took it

          7  against me personally. I had nothing to do with it.

          8  My restaurant seats 50 people, my bar, I have 12 bar

          9  stools. So, I did not come on the 35 or the over 35.

         10  My bar is part of my restaurant. So, I can't tell

         11  people sitting on my right you can't smoke here, I

         12  can't smoke there and you can't smoke here. So, I

         13  was stuck. I got caught in the middle. It was a

         14  hard, hard road.

         15                 I stayed the first nine months of my

         16  business. I lost 40 to 50 percent of my bar. I lost

         17  a good 30 to 35 percent of my dining room. I really

         18  got clobbered. But I stuck it out. Gradually the

         19  word got out that I was non-smoking. People started

         20  to come. After awhile people that hadn't been there

         21  for months says, "what have you done to the place?

         22  It's different."

         23                 In the morning, I work 14, 15 hours a

         24  day. I'm in this business, believe it or not, 57

         25  years since I started originally. So, I know a fair
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          2  bit about it. People said to me, "what have you done

          3  to your place?" I says, "I've done nothing, it just

          4  happens to be smoke-free."

          5                 Some people come in, they turn

          6  around, they walk out. No smoking to this day. Even

          7  last night, I had four people walk in that says

          8  "where can we smoke?" I says, "we're smoke-free."

          9  They took off.

         10                 But we're still packed. We're packed

         11  every night. I will tell you what it did for me. In

         12  my dining room. I had people sitting down smoking

         13  two cigarettes, three cigarettes after their dinner,

         14  drinking coffee. I couldn't serve customers that

         15  were waiting for tables. I had to tell them, I don't

         16  know when these people are getting up. I will tell

         17  you, it hurt me in the beginning. Thank God it has

         18  turned around and is still a huge success in its

         19  36th year. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 The next witness, please.

         23                 DR. HYLAND: Thank you, Madam Chair,

         24  Council members. My name is Andrew Hyland. I'm an

         25  epidemiologist at Roswell Park Cancer Institute in
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          2  Buffalo, New York. I've spent the last six years

          3  trying to figure out what the economic impact of

          4  smoke-free regulations are, with particular focus in

          5  New York City and other counties in New York State.

          6  We know what New York City's law is and we know that

          7  there are thousands of hospitality workers that

          8  continue to be exposed, and that nearby counties are

          9  passing more stringent regulations. But to actually

         10  access the economic impact, I looked at taxable

         11  sales data from the Department of Tax and Finance,

         12  employment statistics from the Bureau of Labor

         13  Statistics. We did surveys of consumers, of

         14  restaurant owners, and we've gone into restaurants

         15  to observe for compliance.

         16                 Now, as you can tell, there's a lot

         17  of controversy around this. This scenario is

         18  actually not much different than what's happening in

         19  dozens of other places across the country. People

         20  predict, you know, doom and gloom, and the reality

         21  has been that the restaurant industry in New York

         22  City has done fine, the hotel industry has done

         23  fine, this is consistent with what it found in other

         24  places around the country.

         25                 And not only that, the vast majority
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          2  of our facilities have been able to comply with

          3  these regulations with relative ease.

          4                 Now, the first main argument is that

          5  smoke-free laws are bad for business. Well, what we

          6  found in New York City, and consistent with the

          7  studies really across the nation, is that in New

          8  York City there have been double-digit increases in

          9  taxable sales from eating and drinking

         10  establishments, whereas in other places in New York

         11  State without regulations there have been

         12  double-digit decreases.

         13                 The hotel industry is fantastic in

         14  New York City, particularly relative to those

         15  counties that don't have smoke-free regulations.

         16  There are 22,000 more restaurant employees in this

         17  City now, compared to before when the '95 smoke-free

         18  regulations took effect. And per capita restaurant

         19  employment overall was increased by 18 percent, with

         20  increases in every single borough, led by Richmond

         21  and Bronx with over a 30 percent increase, and that

         22  per capita growth actually outpaces the growth in

         23  nearby counties of Nassau, Westchester and Rockland.

         24                 Now, we know that smoking has been

         25  banned in California bars since 1998. There will be
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          2  other witnesses that will speak to that, but the

          3  bottom line there is that places that serve liquor

          4  have seen increases in their taxable sales each year

          5  following the implementation of those rules.

          6                 And in our surveys of consumers,

          7  virtually nobody has reported that they've left the

          8  City just to dine in a place that permits smoking.

          9                 And the second argument is that it's

         10  too difficult to comply with these regulations. Now,

         11  we went in and did inspections about two years after

         12  the '95 regulations, and we found four instances out

         13  of the 251 places where there was a violation, an

         14  ashtray or someone smoking. The vast majority of

         15  restaurant owners didn't spend any money to comply

         16  with the regulations, and those that did, the median

         17  amount spent was $200 primarily for signs and air

         18  filters. And while there were some complaints, they

         19  decreased rapidly after a couple of months, and

         20  today about one complaint is registered for every 1

         21  million meals that are served in New York City

         22  restaurants.

         23                 The bottom line is that the

         24  predictions in the past have been doom and gloom and

         25  they haven't gotten manifested.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          3                 Assemblymember.

          4                 ASSEMBLYMEMBER GRANNIS: Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair, and Mr. Speaker, my Council Member. I'm

          6  very pleased to be here.  I represent the district

          7  on the Upper West Side of Manhattan, and I have been

          8  the principal author of the State's Clean Indoor Air

          9  Act and all of its component parts that make up what

         10  was at one point a very strong law that served as a

         11  model for other localities, that is now being

         12  outdone by other communities and other states across

         13  the country.

         14                 I'm here today to support the Mayor's

         15  proposal, and to voice my very strong support for

         16  his initiative to try to bring this law to the

         17  benefit of the thousands of hotel, bar and tavern

         18  workers who are not now covered for 30 years.

         19  Workers in this country and in this state have had

         20  the benefits of workplace protections under OSHA.

         21  OSHA gives every place, every worker a right to an

         22  environment free of any recognized hazard.

         23                 We adopted in New York the public

         24  health and public employee health safety act in

         25  1980, which extended those same workplace
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          2  protections to the public employee workforce.

          3                 We have strong laws that apply to

          4  factory workers, office workers, people who work in

          5  mortuaries, people who work in hotels, people who

          6  work in offices, and I just would urge you to extend

          7  those same protections to people that are as

          8  entitled to them as everybody else, the thousands of

          9  men and women who work in bars and restaurants.

         10                 I think the statistics from

         11  California are true, we don't have to guess about

         12  what the arguments are, about what the impacts of

         13  this law are. There are jurisdictions, California

         14  being one, with 36,000 I think it's a very

         15  conservative estimate, bars and taverns that have

         16  not been adversely affected. These same economic

         17  arguments were trotted out in California before the

         18  Legislature there adopted a universal smoking ban in

         19  bars and restaurants.

         20                 The same arguments were brought out

         21  in Nassau County. Our colleagues there listened to

         22  them, rejected those arguments in favor of the

         23  overall concern for public health for restaurant and

         24  bar employees, as well as other people.

         25                 Dr. Varmus had mentioned that he had
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          2  spent most of his professional life looking at

          3  issues involving cancer care and the relationship to

          4  smoking. I've seen that most of my professional

          5  life, that battling with the cigarette companies.

          6  And I've heard these arguments starting in 1975 when

          7  I was first introduced to the Clean Indoor Air Act.

          8  It took 13 years to get that bill through, but I've

          9  heard these arguments before. I think you've heard

         10  from the industry and those concerns early on that

         11  none of the dire consequences come about because of

         12  the enactment of our Clean Indoor Air or your

         13  stronger Clean Indoor Air Act in 1975.

         14                 Just, finally, the issue I think is

         15  one not of owners here, but of the employees who

         16  work in these bars. You could change the law, or you

         17  could change the rules in this City Council Chamber

         18  to allow smoking, and the members could leave,

         19  members of the public could leave, members of the

         20  public could leave, but the staff couldn't. And I

         21  think that that's what this is all about. Your

         22  Sergeant-At-Arms in that kind of a consequence would

         23  be here for eight hours a day in a smoking

         24  environment. Clearly the bill I think has strong

         25  merit. I think the arguments will be made over and
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          2  over again that there are no economic consequences,

          3  and I think the arguments that somehow there's going

          4  to be community disruption, I have a district that

          5  is filled with bars --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could wrap

          7  up, Assemblymember. I'm sorry.

          8                 ASSEMBLYMEMBER GRANNIS: -- Filled

          9  with taverns, and I can assure you that that is not

         10  the principal concern that I have heard in my

         11  community, should this ban go into effect, that

         12  somehow these people are going to dump out on the

         13  street and disrupt the quiet enjoyment of the Upper

         14  East Side of Manhattan.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 Alison, I apologize that I

         17  mispronounced your last name, so I'm going to let

         18  you do it yourself and not try again. Thank you.

         19                 MS. JOLICOEUR: Hello. My name is

         20  Alison Jolicoeur, and I was in Councilman Gioia's

         21  district. I've been working in New York City

         22  restaurants for the past six years, and for the past

         23  three of those, my work has focused on bartending.

         24                 I came here today to tell you that

         25  passing Intro. 256 would dramatically improve the
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          2  lives of myself and all other bar workers in New

          3  York.

          4                 When I started working in

          5  restaurants, I was a smoker myself. But because I am

          6  a singer, I found the motivation to quit.

          7                 (Interruption.)

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We could have had

          9  bull horns in the back, but it was only a second. If

         10  everybody could take their seats, please, so we

         11  could hear the witness testimony.

         12                 Just while everybody is taking their

         13  seats, I just want to announce the panel after this

         14  will be Joseph Spinnato, Chuck Hunt, and Brian

         15  O'Dwyer. That will be the panel to follow this one.

         16  So, folks could take their seats, if we could quiet

         17  down the Chamber, and we'll start the clock. We'll

         18  start all over again.

         19                 Okay. Thank you.

         20                 MS. JOLICOEUR: My name is Alison

         21  Jolicoeur. I live in Councilman Gioia's district.

         22  I've been working in New York City restaurants for

         23  the past six years, and for the past three of those

         24  my work has focused on bartending.

         25                 I came here today to tell you that
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          2  passing Intro. 256 would dramatically improve the

          3  lives of myself and all other bar workers in New

          4  York.

          5                 When I started working in restaurants

          6  I was a smoker myself, but because I am a singer, I

          7  found the motivation to quit.

          8                 Quitting while working in a

          9  restaurant was not an easy task, because of the

         10  smoke that was constantly around me.

         11                 Thankfully I was able to quit. Little

         12  did I know that you don't have to smoke to feel the

         13  effects of secondhand smoke.

         14                 I've heard a lot of people say that

         15  bartenders know what they're getting into, and if

         16  they don't like smoke, they can work somewhere else.

         17                 I take offense to such statements.

         18  Real life is not that simple. The wonderful thing

         19  about my job is that it allows me to follow my

         20  dreams.

         21                 Like many others in my line of work,

         22  I am a singer and performer and I depend on the

         23  flexibility which my job offers. I'll just make a

         24  note here that I'm also dependent on my health

         25  benefits, which not many restaurants offer in the
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          2  City.

          3                 If there was another job where I

          4  could make as much money while working the same

          5  hours, nearly as accommodating as my bartending

          6  work, I would take it in a second. Unfortunately,

          7  that is not the case. But I pay the price every time

          8  I work. By the end of a ten-hour shift my eyes are

          9  itchy, I am wheezing, coughing and my skin is

         10  crawling, I cannot breathe through my nose. My

         11  throat is sore and my chest feels heavy.

         12                 I begin to have symptoms of asthma,

         13  which I otherwise would never have. I cannot sing

         14  the next day. It takes a whole day to recover. I

         15  have to limit the number of shifts I work because of

         16  the smoke.

         17                 I don't need experts to tell me about

         18  the effects of secondhand smoke, because I have felt

         19  it firsthand.

         20                 I don't want to hear about smokers'

         21  rights because I have a right not to breathe smoke,

         22  even when I'm working, even if it is at a bar.

         23                 As a New Yorker, I ask you that you

         24  are a leader on this issue, as past City Councils

         25  have been in so many instances. As a bartender, I
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          2  ask that you defend my right not to be exposed to

          3  secondhand smoke.

          4                 I urge you to put politics behind you

          5  on this issue, and cast your vote in support of

          6  Intro. 256.

          7                 My life and the wellbeing of hundreds

          8  of thousands of my fellow New Yorkers depends on it.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Council Member Koppell.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair. I want to principally take this

         15  opportunity to welcome Assemblyman Grannis, who I

         16  served with in Albany for many years, and say that

         17  he has been a true pioneer in an effort to clean up

         18  the indoor environment in New York State, indeed the

         19  nation.

         20                 When he first introduced the Clean

         21  Indoor Air Act, I think some people laughed at the

         22  title, and he should be proud that now the Mayor and

         23  this Council is considering legislation with that

         24  very name that he gave his bill.

         25                 I also might like because I see Pete
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          2  here, just to call the attention of my colleagues,

          3  that we had smoking in the Assembly Chamber of the

          4  State of New York when I first got there, and some

          5  members asked that smoking be ended, and there were

          6  a lot of resistance by the smokers. And then one day

          7  an Assemblyman, and I believe his name was Emile

          8  Detrios, got up and he asked --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council member, if

         10  you could please just sum up?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I will.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I thought you were

         13  just welcoming your colleague.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: He asked that

         15  we stop smoking in the Assembly Chamber because he

         16  had cancer and was dying. And I can tell you not one

         17  member of the Assembly voted against stopping

         18  smoking in the Assembly Chamber, there's never been

         19  smoking in that Assembly Chamber again. And that

         20  should be a lesson to all of us.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Do any of my

         22  colleagues have questions for this panel?

         23                 No? Okay. Thank you all very much.

         24                 Next we're going to hear from Joseph

         25  Spinnato, Chuck Hunt and Brian O'Dwyer. That panel
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          2  will be followed by John Samet, Judith Joyce, Don

          3  Distasio, Lou Mones, who I'm sure I'm pronouncing

          4  your name wrong. I apologize. And Dr. Reverend

          5  Calvin Butts.

          6                 If any of the witnesses have prepared

          7  testimony, if you give it to the Sergeants, they'll

          8  distribute it to the Council members. Thank you. And

          9  if people again could try to exit the Chambers

         10  quietly, so we could have the panels begin while

         11  people are exiting? Thank you.

         12                 I just want to thank Mr. Spinnato and

         13  the hotel industry. Everyone was very helpful in

         14  setting up these panels, but the hotel industry is

         15  particularly accommodating in working within the

         16  time constraints of giving both sides, six panels.

         17  So, thank you very much for that. I appreciate that.

         18                 MR. SPINNATO: You're very welcome.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: In whatever order

         21  you'd like to go in. Identify yourself, please, at

         22  the beginning of your testimony.

         23                 MR. SPINNATO: If I may, Madam Chair?

         24  My name is Joseph E. Spinnato, I am the President of

         25  the Hotel Association of New York City, and I
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          2  represent our association, which consists of 194 of

          3  the City's finest hotels, which contain over 60,000

          4  rooms.

          5                 The industry employs more than 30,000

          6  people and the vast majority of these workers are

          7  unionized.

          8                 The hotel industry in New York City

          9  supported the last two smoking bills which were

         10  adopted by this Council. We supported these bills

         11  because we felt that they appropriately addressed

         12  the needs of our industry.

         13                 While we do not dispute the Mayor's

         14  efforts to provide non-smokers with a smoke-free

         15  environment, because of the nature of our industry,

         16  we've also expressed our concerns that this pending

         17  bill will adversely affect tourism spending in New

         18  York City at a time of already profound industry

         19  challenges.

         20                 Secondly, we believe very strongly

         21  that the bill, as now drafted, will recreate a fire

         22  safety hazard which was remedied in the current New

         23  York City smoking law, which was done at the request

         24  of our industry.

         25                 As to the first issue, as I stated,
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          2  we're not here to dispute the health issues that

          3  have been brought before this Council. I would like

          4  to point out that our industry does care very much

          5  for the health and well-being of our employees. And,

          6  in fact our hotels financially support a health care

          7  system for our union employees that cannot be

          8  matched anywhere in the country.

          9                 Further, when the massive layoffs of

         10  our workers occurred after the September 11th

         11  tragedy due to the precipitous drop in occupancy,

         12  hotel industry, the hotels themselves, earmarked $5

         13  million to continue the health insurance coverage of

         14  those people who had to be laid off.

         15                 The hotel industry is first and

         16  foremost a service business which is driven by

         17  customer demands and needs. Our aim is to

         18  accommodate all of our guests. It should be noted

         19  here that over half of our hotels which were

         20  recently surveyed have over 40 percent of their

         21  rooms occupied for foreign guests.

         22                 Also, the majority of smoking rooms

         23  are indeed requested by foreign visitors. Several of

         24  our member hotels have cocktail lounges or bars

         25  which are patronized for the most part by these
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          2  foreigners, foreigners who, unfortunately, if you

          3  will, insist on smoking.

          4                 What these hotels tell us is that

          5  they believe that these patrons will disappear if

          6  the lounge or bar becomes a non-smoking venue.

          7                 If these customers were indeed to

          8  disappear and that void is not filled by other

          9  guests, other customers, and there is no guarantee

         10  that this void would be filled, we fear that the

         11  very employees that we are trying to protect could

         12  wind up losing his or her job.

         13                 In other words, ladies and gentlemen,

         14  we feel that the economic issues have not been

         15  adequately addressed.

         16                 With regard to what I mentioned

         17  earlier concerning the fire safety hazard --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

         19  up, please?

         20                 MR. SPINNATO: Yes, I will. This is

         21  very important.

         22                 Our experience shows that a guest who

         23  enters the hotel with a lit cigarette would, of

         24  course, be requested to extinguish that cigarette.

         25  What we argued with respect to the current law was
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          2  that the guests should have an ashtray within which

          3  they can extinguish the cigarette upon entering the

          4  hotel.

          5                 The same logic applies to an even

          6  greater extent regarding the necessity of ashtrays

          7  in elevator lobbies on the smoking floors of our

          8  hotel.

          9                 Under current law and we believe

         10  under proposed law, guests are able and will

         11  continue to be able to smoke in their rooms.

         12                 It is our experience that it is not

         13  uncommon for a smoking guest to exit their room with

         14  a lit cigarette and walk to the elevator.

         15                 Guests rarely, if ever, will enter an

         16  elevator with a lit cigarette. They need to have a

         17  place to extinguish that cigarette before they get

         18  into the elevator. The alternative is they will

         19  grind a cigarette out in the carpet. Which is

         20  exactly what happened in a hotel in Los Vegas not

         21  too long ago with disastrous effects.

         22                 In conclusion, I would like to state

         23  on behalf of the Hotel Association of New York City

         24  that we would again ask the Council to be mindful as

         25  we are of the need to balance the important health
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          2  concerns of our employees, along with the economic

          3  well-being of New York City's business and tourism

          4  community.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 The next speaker -- as I've told

          8  people, clapping just takes away from the people you

          9  agree with's time to speak. Whoever wants to go next

         10  should go.

         11                 MR. HUNT: Good afternoon. I'm Chuck

         12  Hunt. I'm the Executive Vice President of the

         13  Greater New York City Chapters of the New York State

         14  Restaurant Association.

         15                 Our Association is affiliated with

         16  the national restaurant association and represents

         17  over 7,000 restaurants and food service outlets in

         18  New York State, over 2,000 of which are here in New

         19  York City throughout the five boroughs.

         20                 New York City's food service industry

         21  consists of over 21,000 operations providing jobs

         22  for 175,000 workers. Over 9,600 of the City's

         23  restaurants, hotels, catering halls, private clubs,

         24  nightclubs, bowling allies, taverns and bars, whole

         25  licenses to serve alcoholic beverages.
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          2                 At the present time they are able

          3  under the provisions of the smoke-free air act of

          4  1995 to accommodate their customers, including both

          5  patrons who choose to smoke, and those who do not.

          6                 The restaurant industry does not

          7  advocate smoking. Our business is hospitality, not

          8  the manufacture or selling of tobacco products.

          9                 We vigorously opposed the law of 1995

         10  when it was introduced. Many operators expected to

         11  suffer a substantial loss of business, and some even

         12  predicted that they would be put out of business.

         13                 Perhaps some did suffer sales

         14  declines and even failure of their business,

         15  however, for the most part that did not happen.

         16                 Business from 1995 through 2000

         17  increased steadily as the economy boomed. The 1995

         18  regulations, however, were not a total ban.

         19                 Following the proposal on August 12th

         20  of a total ban on smoking in all City public places,

         21  a poll of our New York City members was conducted to

         22  determine the position they wish me and the

         23  Association to take.

         24                 Their questions were simple. Should

         25  the Association support or oppose the total smoking
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          2  ban? Results today, 65 percent urged opposition and

          3  33 percent indicated their support.

          4                 You may ask why such a majority

          5  oppose the bill, when the health and welfare of its

          6  employees are at stake.

          7                 Here's why. In early 2000, the

          8  economy began to slow here and across the country.

          9  The slow-down, coupled with the aftermath of the

         10  horrible events of September 11th, had put many of

         11  the City's restaurants in a fragile condition. Not

         12  only are operators fearful of anything that might

         13  put their businesses in jeopardy, a great many of

         14  their employees share that fear.

         15                 One group of five restaurants copied

         16  and circulated our poll response forms to their

         17  employees. Approximately 120 of those workers

         18  indicated their opposition to the proposal, despite

         19  the health risks of working in an establishment that

         20  permitted smoking.

         21                 Other reasons to oppose this bill

         22  were also stated. Many feel the biggest issue is

         23  that of individual choice. Many restaurants have

         24  chosen on their own to be smoke-free, others have

         25  chosen under the current law to serve both smokers
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          2  and non-smokers. Their choices have been driven by

          3  the choice of their customers to patronize or not

          4  patronize their establishments.

          5                 Employees have a right to choose to

          6  work or not work in establishments that allow

          7  smoking. Any smart and considerate restaurateur will

          8  assign a worker who objects to working in a smoking

          9  area to a non-smoking area.

         10                 You've already heard from the Hotel

         11  Association of the serious decline in foreign

         12  tourists visiting the City. Restaurants --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mr. Hunt, if you

         14  could wrap up, please?

         15                 MR. HUNT: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         17                 MR. HUNT: Restaurants also depend on

         18  business generated by tourists, both foreign and

         19  domestic.

         20                 We cannot question the sincerity of

         21  the advocates of this bill.

         22                 We share their concern for the health

         23  of our employees, our New York customers and those

         24  who visit our City from other areas of the country

         25  and from abroad.
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          2                 We also care about the jobs we

          3  provide and the contributions of our industry to the

          4  economy of the City.

          5                 We hope that by observing the current

          6  law and making well thought-out choices as to how we

          7  conduct our businesses, we can continue to serve the

          8  public in the most responsible manner possible.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Mr. O'Dwyer.

         13                 MR. O'DWYER: Madam Chair, and members

         14  of the Council, my name is Brian O'Dwyer. I serve

         15  and continue to serve as Chairman of the Emerald

         16  Isle Immigration Center, but in the hearing today in

         17  my personal capacity, and not as an official of the

         18  Emerald Isle.

         19                 I also serve as an advisor to many

         20  other immigrant groups in New York, including the

         21  Mexicans, the Latinos, other Latino and Vietnamese

         22  groups.

         23                 New York's immigrants, both Irish and

         24  non-Irish, have relied on the hospitality industry

         25  to provide their needed employment.
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          2                 I am very concerned about the

          3  economic impact of this bill on the immigrant

          4  community of New York.

          5                 There is no doubt that the

          6  hospitality industry has suffered in the wake of

          7  September 11th with the consequence of loss of jobs

          8  to many of our immigrants. These immigrants, many of

          9  whom are undocumented, do not have access to the

         10  safety nets of unemployment insurance and public

         11  assistance, so their suffering is and continues to

         12  be even more acute than other New Yorkers.

         13                 This proposed legislation will have a

         14  serious impact on their future and the future of

         15  their families, many of whom rely upon them for

         16  their living.

         17                 If there was ever a time for this

         18  bill, it is not now.

         19                 By passing this bill you will cause

         20  undue hardship to those who can least afford to lose

         21  their jobs.

         22                 I speak to voice the pleas of those

         23  who have no voice, and urge you to reject this

         24  legislation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.
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          2                 I again want to thank Mr. Spinnato

          3  for being so flexible, and also Mr. O'Dwyer, I know

          4  you've moved your schedule around today to fit into

          5  the panel structure, so I want to thank everybody

          6  for working with us on that.

          7                 We have a number of Council Members

          8  who have questions for different people of the

          9  panel.

         10                 I wanted to start off first, Mr.

         11  Hunt, when you sent out the questionnaire, you sent

         12  that to all your members, that's what, about 20,000

         13  or so?

         14                 MR. O'DWYER: I sent it out to 900

         15  restaurants, or 900 members that represent the bulk

         16  of our membership. I did not send it to associate

         17  members, I did not send it to fastfood operations.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, okay. So,

         19  those 900 are what? Just tell me --

         20                 MR. O'DWYER: Primarily those that

         21  have liquor licenses.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And what was the

         23  response rate that you heard?

         24                 MR. O'DWYER: Sixty-five percent --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: How many in
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          2  numbers?

          3                 MR. O'DWYER: Three-hundred and

          4  sixteen responses. That's in the information that

          5  I've given the Council.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It is. Okay, thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 All right, Council Member Lopez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Good evening,

         10  sir.

         11                 I'm having some difficulty hearing,

         12  because this is so huge, this desk here. Sorry.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You feel like that

         14  Lilly Tomlin character.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The point that

         16  you made in your second page, the point that you

         17  made in your second page of the testimony, in regard

         18  of the elimination of the ashtrays in the hallways.

         19                 MR. SPINNATO: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you

         21  elaborate on that issue?

         22                 MR. SPINNATO: The current law, when

         23  it was first enacted, did not make provisions for

         24  the placement of ashtrays at the elevator lobbies or

         25  at the entrances to the hotels.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

          3                 MR. SPINNATO: We brought that to the

          4  attention of the Council at the time. We testified,

          5  and the bill was amended to allow these ashtrays to

          6  be placed in the elevator lobbies on the sleeping

          7  floors, as well as at the entrances to the hotel,

          8  for the purposes that I stated, that being it was

          9  purely for a safety purpose. It was not to encourage

         10  smoking, and, in fact, we suggested that the

         11  ashtrays have a sign placed above that, indicating

         12  that this was for the extinguishment of cigarettes

         13  only, smoking is prohibited, and that is what the

         14  Council passed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you. And

         16  the last question is --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member,

         18  we're only allowing one question per Council Member.

         19  I apologize.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I apologize

         21  then.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sorry.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Sorry, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         25  Oddo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

          3  Chair.

          4                 Mr. Hunt, in your testimony, you used

          5  the word "choice." The word choice is usually a

          6  lightning rod term in politics, and I think it's a

          7  crucial term in this debate too.

          8                 In the second page of your testimony,

          9  you say any smart and considerate restaurateur will

         10  assign a worker who objects to working in a smoking

         11  area to a non-smoking area. Is it fair to say that

         12  in some restaurants, a few restaurants, some

         13  restaurants, many restaurants, the waitress who

         14  choose to work in a non-smoking area is working in

         15  an area ten, 15 feet away from a bar area or a

         16  smoking area?

         17                 MR. HUNT: That's objective, depending

         18  on a particular restaurant.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Fifteen feet is

         20  objective?

         21                 MR. HUNT: Some restaurants there

         22  would be 15 feet.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, is it fair

         24  to say that a few, some or many restaurants have

         25  folks working in a non-smoking area that is just
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          2  several feet away, six feet or eight feet or ten

          3  feet away?

          4                 MR. HUNT: The law requires either a

          5  full wall or six feet.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ODDO: Six feet away?

          7                 MR. HUNT: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ODDO: Okay. Does that

          9  waitress have a choice to inhale that secondhand

         10  smoke?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         12  Oddo, only one question. I'm sorry. I'm sorry.

         13                 Council Member Gallagher. Council

         14  Member Gallagher.

         15                 We're going to have to have no

         16  outbursts from either side. I'm going to say it

         17  again, or we're going to clear the Chambers, for

         18  whatever your opinion is on the matter.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.

         20  I have a question for Mr. Spinnato.

         21                 You mentioned in your testimony about

         22  economic impact. I would just like to know in your

         23  expert opinion, what would the affect have on the

         24  hotel industry if smoking was prohibited even in the

         25  rooms?
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          2                 MR. SPINNATO: In the smoking rooms?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: There would

          4  be no smoking rooms, that you're prohibited to

          5  smoke.

          6                 MR. SPINNATO: I think that would be

          7  devastating.

          8                 I think at the moment now our

          9  statistics show that 20 percent, 20 to 30 percent in

         10  some of our hotels of the rooms are currently

         11  smoking rooms. The vast majority of our rooms in

         12  most hotels are non-smoking. But of the 25 to 30

         13  percent of smoking rooms, I'm told that the

         14  occupancy in those rooms is consistently good.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 Council Member Stewart.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         18  Madam Chair.

         19                 I have a question that I feel any one

         20  of you can answer, because most of you have

         21  addressed -- have not addressed the rights of the

         22  workers.

         23                 We have strict laws to protect the

         24  health and lives of our workers in the City,

         25  throughout the entire City. Why do you think that
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          2  the health of a bar worker is not that important to

          3  protect?

          4                 MR. SPINNATO: I don't think any of us

          5  said that. I certainly did not.

          6                 I believe that all workers should

          7  have protection from illnesses and risk of

          8  ill-health.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Isn't that

         10  what this bill is trying to do?

         11                 MR. SPINNATO: Yes. But is it doing it

         12  at the expense of that person's right to work and

         13  that persons right to have a job, because I said it

         14  in my testimony, and I'll repeat it, if -- you know,

         15  New York is New York. Forty percent of our guests

         16  come from other parts of the world. No other City in

         17  the United States can say that. And these people do

         18  not share our ethic about smoking. They smoke and

         19  many of them smoke constantly. What we're saying is

         20  that if the bars and the cocktail lounges in our

         21  hotels where these people frequent become empty or

         22  considerably less number of guests patronize them,

         23  then people will have to be laid off. We won't be

         24  able to employ these people. And I'm not suggesting

         25  we should do that at the expense of the health of
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          2  the employee.

          3                 What I'm saying is, we believe that

          4  more study is needed to see in fact if this economic

          5  impact will materialize. And we believe that there's

          6  a very, very good chance it will.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 Council Member Koppell.

          9                 MR. O'DWYER: Mr. Stewart, let me just

         10  say one thing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, go right

         12  ahead. If either of the other two witnesses would

         13  like to respond, please go right ahead.

         14                 MR. O'DWYER: Let me just say one

         15  thing. I have worked for my entire life for workers'

         16  rights. I have to indicate that any of us here have

         17  unfeeling for workers or their rights is truly a

         18  terrible thing to say.

         19                 Let me tell you one thing. I

         20  represent the people who have no voice - the

         21  immigrants, the people, the Mexicans, the

         22  Vietnamese, the people who come here undocumented.

         23  You put them out of work, you don't provide them

         24  with a safety net, you, the City of New York, you,

         25  the United States government, they depend on this
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          2  job, they depend on this man, they depend on this

          3  man for their livelihood.

          4                 They don't only depend for their

          5  livelihood, they send money home to Mexico, to

          6  Vietnam, to Colombia and support hundreds and

          7  thousands of people with their jobs, and what this

          8  City Council is proposing to do is to put people in

          9  starvation, and that's a very serious health issue.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mr. Hunt, would

         11  you like to add anything?

         12                 MR. HUNT: I think it's been well said

         13  by both my colleagues.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         15                 Council Member Koppell.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         17  Brian O'Dwyer is a friend of mine, but Mr. O'Dwyer,

         18  that statement to Mr. Stewart is worse than what you

         19  charged him with. Because nobody is trying to put

         20  anybody into starvation.

         21                 I'm sitting here as if, and listening

         22  to people talk as if we have no model to test the

         23  statement. California has had no smoking in bars and

         24  restaurants for four years now. The Mayor has

         25  provided us with a chart that shows that the tourism
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          2  industry has gone up substantially since 1998. I

          3  haven't seen one witness come and show me from

          4  California, even an example of one restaurant that

          5  closed because of this, one immigrant that lost its

          6  job, and I might say, Mr. O'Dwyer, there are at

          7  least as many immigrants in California as New York,

          8  and to Mr. Spinnato, if you go to San Francisco, I

          9  think you might be surprised how many foreigners are

         10  in their hotels.

         11                 So, I want to know from you, I want

         12  to know from you, and you don't need to do it today,

         13  what statistics do you have to show that the

         14  economic impact of this legislation in place in

         15  California with twice as many people as New York,

         16  and big cities and as cosmopolitan as New York, what

         17  statistics you have to show in California that

         18  immigrants were put out of jobs and that businesses

         19  were closed; what statistics do you have?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Whoever would like

         21  to respond.

         22                 MR. SPINNATO: I do not have a survey

         23  which would compare it to the one you've described.

         24  I will say that a survey of our businesses here in

         25  New York City is really all that we need to convince
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          2  ourselves to the credibility of our argument.

          3                 I can call up one of my hotel people

          4  and I can ask them what a particular event, or what

          5  a particular situation has caused vis-a-vis

          6  occupancy, vis-a-vis the drop-in rates, or the

          7  increase in rates, and I will say again we have done

          8  studies about the percentages of visitors to other

          9  cities in this country. No city in the country comes

         10  near to the 40 percent number of foreign visitors

         11  that New York receives every year. And I might add,

         12  that 40 percent has dropped and it has dropped

         13  dramatically since September 11th. We're now trying

         14  to lure the Europeans back. We're trying to lure the

         15  South Americans and the Asians back to New York.

         16  Something like this, again, it's purely economic.

         17  Something like this could impede that effort.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         19  Brewer has the final question for this panel.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         21  much, Chairwoman Quinn.

         22                 I wanted to know about the fires. I

         23  know that you talked about the fact that you work

         24  hard, as any hotel does, to keep ashtrays so that

         25  people will put their cigarettes out before they go
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          2  up to their room or perhaps even go to the bar and

          3  move around the premises.

          4                 I actually do have a friend, not in a

          5  hotel, but perhaps the worst funeral I ever went to

          6  she fell asleep lying on the sofa and died in her

          7  apartment from a cigarette.

          8                 So, my question to you is, do you

          9  have any sense of the percentage, it may be small,

         10  it may be large, of fires in the hotels or in the

         11  bars that are caused by cigarettes? Again, not your

         12  fault, but is there any percentage?

         13                 MR. SPINNATO: In my former life I

         14  could have answered that question a lot more easily

         15  than I can now.

         16                 I don't have a number handy at the

         17  moment as to the number of people who have fallen

         18  asleep in hotel rooms and have caused fires. It is

         19  not a significant number. I know that. But of course

         20  it does happen and it has happened.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Go ahead. Council

         24  Member Vallone has one final question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: It's just a
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          2  follow-up, you just said you don't have the facts

          3  for California and you're asking us basically to

          4  take your word. I was in this room in 1995, and you

          5  said then as you said now, more studies are needed,

          6  jobs will be lost. You were wrong then.

          7                 MR. SPINNATO: Excuse me. We were not

          8  wrong.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could just

         10  let the Council Member ask his question and then you

         11  could respond.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, studies

         13  show you were wrong then, we can disagree on that. I

         14  don't believe you were right then. The City did fine

         15  after that. You know, I have your testimony where

         16  you said, -- Charles Hunt said, "we vigorously

         17  oppose the law. Perhaps some did suffer sales

         18  declines, however, for the most part that did not

         19  happen." That's your testimony. Why should we

         20  believe you now if you were wrong then?

         21                 MR. SPINNATO: First of all, I

         22  indicated in my testimony that we supported both of

         23  the prior bills the City Council passed. We

         24  supported them, and you can check that through

         25  testimony, if you like.
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          2                 If you don't want to believe me

          3  sitting here, then perhaps some search of the

          4  minutes of the testimony would indicate that what I

          5  say is in fact accurate.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm not

          7  doubting that. My question is directed at Charles

          8  Hunt, who vigorously opposed this.

          9                 MR. HUNT: Would you state your

         10  question again? I'm sorry.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You stated

         12  that you vigorously opposed the law of 1995, and the

         13  dire predictions you made did not come to pass; why

         14  should we believe your predictions now about loss of

         15  business?

         16                 MR. HUNT: Well, first of all, the

         17  restaurant industry and the hospitality industry had

         18  a run of about seven years where things went up

         19  around the country. It was very hard to determine

         20  what the effect of the Smoke-Free Air Act might have

         21  had either to help that or to hurt that.

         22                 We're now looking at 2002. I don't

         23  believe the Mayor's graph goes that far, but right

         24  now, after September 11th, and after a steady

         25  decline in the economy, which has been noted by
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          2  economists around the country, our industry is in a

          3  very, very fragile condition, and many of these

          4  workers and their employers are fearful of anything

          5  that remotely suggests that there might be a decline

          6  in business.

          7                 I've had people say to me, this might

          8  be a good idea, but this is not a good time, and I

          9  believe my colleague, Mr. Spinnata, also expressed

         10  that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, that is

         12  a concern of ours. We would just like to have some

         13  facts to back that up. If anyone can give that to

         14  us, we'd be more than happy to look at that.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm just going to

         17  make an exception, which I'm sure I'll end up

         18  regretting if I continue to do it, but I'm going to

         19  let Council Member Gallagher, who wanted to ask a

         20  question of a different witness than he had asked

         21  before and Council Member Stewart wanted to

         22  follow-up.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.

         24  This is actually the follow-up --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And
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          2  that that will be the wrap-up for this panel. Thank

          3  you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: A follow-up

          5  to what my colleague Peter Vallone said with this.

          6  But I think we just heard testimony from a fine

          7  Irish man a little while ago that said when he went

          8  smoke-free, he lost 40 to 50 percent, he had a

          9  reduction in the bar business, and a 35 percent

         10  reduction in his dining room business, and then it

         11  took approximately nine months before he was able to

         12  overcome that.

         13                 So, my question to you is with all

         14  the bars and all the restaurants throughout this

         15  City, how many of them can afford to wait nine

         16  months? Or how many of them will go out of business?

         17                 MR. HUNT: Very, very few. The

         18  restaurant and bar business depends upon a

         19  consistent cash flow. When that cash flow declines

         20  as much as 40 percent, the gentleman who was up here

         21  before was very fortunate that he had the

         22  wherewithal to ride it out. But believe me, there

         23  are a great many restaurants, many of those people

         24  are here in this room today, that would find it

         25  very, very difficult to go nine or ten months with
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          2  that kind of a decline before business came back.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, Council

          5  Member Stewart. And then we're going to hear the

          6  next panel, which is John Samet, Judith Joice, John

          7  Distasio, Lou Moench and Dr. Ben Chu.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Just a

          9  follow-up. I was something confused a while ago,

         10  because you said if you stay working there you're

         11  going to lose your health and your life, but if we

         12  pass this bill it means then you will save your life

         13  but lose a job. How can you equate that? How can you

         14  do that?

         15                 You're saying, from what you said a

         16  while ago, dealing with the rights, you're saying

         17  that you take into consideration the rights of the

         18  bar workers, but if they stay there and work, you

         19  want them to lose their health and their life

         20  because of the smoke. And if they don't stay there

         21  and work, if we pass this bill, it means that we

         22  will save their life but they lose a job, that's

         23  what you're saying, aren't you?

         24                 MR. DWYER: There are obviously

         25  choices that have to be made in everybody's life.
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          2  Unfortunately, for those who are poor, oppressed and

          3  undocumented, those choices are much less than those

          4  for the rest of us.

          5                 The undocumented who depend in large

          6  part on the hospitality industry -- by the way, I

          7  have no relation to that industry, those

          8  undocumented make the choice to work there, on the

          9  basis that not only do they make a living, but the

         10  money that they make, however small, goes home to

         11  Africa, to Latin America, to China, and feeds not

         12  one person, but many in that family, and it is

         13  important for those of us who truly care about them

         14  that we preserve their right and their choice to

         15  feed their families.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         17  much. Thank you all, again, very much for

         18  testifying. We're now going to hear from the panel

         19  that I announced.

         20                 The panel following this panel will

         21  be Audrey Silk, Linda Stewart, Sidney Zion, and

         22  James Tom.

         23                 I just want to make one other

         24  announcement while the panels are switching, which

         25  is that many of you should have gotten this piece of
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          2  paper on your chair. There's more of those at the

          3  Sergeant-At-Arms desk if you didn't.

          4                 If you would like to be notified of

          5  the date of the next hearing on the bill, please

          6  fill this out.

          7                 We believe that at that hearing we

          8  will have less scheduled panels and more just open

          9  time for general members of the public to testify.

         10                 Before you go up and get the white

         11  things, just listen for a second.

         12                 If you would like to testify today,

         13  which we believe will start at approximately around,

         14  not committing, but hoping, around sixish, get one

         15  of these slips to fill out.

         16                 I cannot promise if you fill out a

         17  slip we will hear everyone who filled one out today.

         18  When you get the slip it's very important, because

         19  we're going to seek to alternate between pro and con

         20  to give both sides the same amount of time that you

         21  know whether you're in favor or opposition to the

         22  bill, there's boxes to check.

         23                 You can get both of those from the

         24  Sergeant. Please return them after you've filled

         25  them out to the Sergeant's desk.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 And then you guys can go in whatever

          4  order you'd like. Just identify yourself for the

          5  record before you start.

          6                 And if we could just try to get quiet

          7  in the Chamber for the panel, please. And the

          8  Sergeant's desk is to the left over there, if people

          9  are looking for it. Just quiet while you're going up

         10  to get them, please.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MS. JOICE: Good afternoon,

         13  distinguished members of the Council. My name is

         14  Judy Joice. I am testifying before you today to

         15  support Intro. 256 to ban smoking in the

         16  restaurants, bars and clubs. I co-owned the Lion's

         17  Head in Greenwich Village with my husband Wes Joice

         18  for 14 of our 27 years together.

         19                 Our business was a renown watering

         20  hole for Pulitzer Prize winners, journalists, TV

         21  media, neighborhood residents and visitors from

         22  around the world.

         23                 We were enveloped in a cloud of smoke

         24  at all times. In the seventies and eighties people

         25  thought this was sexy. In the nineties they started
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          2  dying. We lost two of our longstanding bartenders,

          3  one to lung cancer, one to a heart attack. Four of

          4  our dearest friends and regular customers died of

          5  smoke-related diseases. I do not believe for one

          6  minute that the ban on smoking will negatively

          7  affect business if there is a level playing field.

          8  No business will suffer.

          9                 On the anniversary of D-Day in 1997 I

         10  lost my husband Wes. He survived the Korean War, a

         11  three-year stint in the New York City Police

         12  Department, sailing across the Atlantic in a 40-foot

         13  boat, but he could not prevail against lung cancer.

         14                 In April of '99, New York City

         15  honored my husband by adding a street sign on

         16  Sheridan Square called"Wes Joice Corner." Every time

         17  I look at that sign, I remember how he died. I've

         18  owned, managed or worked in bars almost my entire

         19  life, that's well over 30 years. I am now the

         20  manager of the Cornelia Street Cafe. We allow

         21  smoking at three of our six outside tables and at

         22  the tables in the bar room.

         23                 I regularly rotate the staff so no

         24  wait person has to work that station more than once

         25  a week. As one of our wait staff put it to me the
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          2  other day, "I don't smoke, I cause no harm to

          3  anyone, why do I have to risk my health when I come

          4  to work?" An unanswerable question, as far as I'm

          5  concerned.

          6                 Again, I state that I don't believe

          7  for one minute that ban on smoking will negatively

          8  affect business. Again, it is necessary to have a

          9  level playing field. If it is banned in all

         10  restaurants and bars, then our competitor cannot be

         11  the choice of, I can't smoke here, I'm going around

         12  the corner.

         13                 In fact, bar business will hopefully

         14  and probably increase. Many people who go out to

         15  dinner now no longer have that drink before dinner

         16  at the bar, they have it at home, because the

         17  secondhand smoke burns their eyes or causes them to

         18  cough.

         19                 The argument that a ban on smoking

         20  infringes on the civil liberties on smokers is

         21  disingenuous. The opposite is in fact true. Smoking

         22  infringes on the civil liberties of those who do not

         23  wish to inhale. My father died of a malignant brain

         24  tumor. He smoked his entire adult life.

         25                 I've lost two of the three most
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          2  important men in my life to cancer.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you sum up,

          4  I'm sorry.

          5                 MS. JOICE: My wonderful son Max is

          6  the third most important man in my life. He's 21, a

          7  student at NYU, and like all his friends, goes to

          8  bars and clubs. They're in smoke-filled rooms all

          9  the time. I don't want to watch any more people I

         10  love die of cancer. He spent too many months doing

         11  his homework by his father's bedside in the

         12  hospital, or helping me carry him to the bathroom.

         13  He knows how dangerous this is.

         14                 Once again, I support this bill in

         15  the interest of fairness to all restaurant bar and

         16  club employees, and in the interest of stopping the

         17  spread of this lethal disease.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 If the next witness could go, please.

         21                 DR. SAMET: Good afternoon. I'm

         22  Jonathan Samet, a chest physician and epidemiologist

         23  and also chairman of epidemiology at the John's

         24  Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health in

         25  Baltimore.
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          2                 I was one of the editors for Dr.

          3  Koop's 1986 Surgeon General's Report, even then the

          4  evidence was sufficient to conclude that passive

          5  smoking caused lung cancer.

          6                 Since then I've been involved in many

          7  reviews of the evidence for WHO and other groups,

          8  and again the conclusion has always been the same,

          9  passive smoking causes lung cancer and also other

         10  diseases.

         11                 The scientific evidence is vast, and

         12  I'm just going to briefly summarize a few of the

         13  points that are critical.

         14                 Tobacco smoke can be measured in the

         15  air wherever smoking is taking place, and we know

         16  that non-smokers inhale the smoke and it's deposited

         17  in their body. We can find its track by measuring

         18  components of tobacco smoke, which can be found in

         19  the blood, the urine, the saliva.

         20                 We can find tobacco smoke carcinogens

         21  in non-smokers who inhale smoke. Passive smoking

         22  does cause lung cancer in non-smokers. This has been

         23  shown in studies involving exposures in homes and in

         24  workplaces. And there is no evidence that there is a

         25  safe level of exposure.
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          2                 Passive smoking also causes coronary

          3  heart disease. The same disease caused by active

          4  smoking. Persons with asthma and other chronic lung

          5  diseases, now a substantial portion of our

          6  population, are adversely affected when they breathe

          7  in this smoke, whether at home or in public places.

          8                 We know that there are many adverse

          9  effects on children affecting their respiratory

         10  health, their lungs, their ears and so on. And, of

         11  course, smoking causes annoyance and irritation of

         12  the membranes of the eyes, nose and throat.

         13                 Simply separating smokers and

         14  non-smokers in the same airspace does not protect

         15  against inhaling secondhand smoke.

         16                 This is one of the major conclusions

         17  of Dr. Koop's 1986 report. Critics have repeatedly

         18  questioned some of the scientific evidence,

         19  supporting the conclusions that I just listed. These

         20  points of criticism have been given serious

         21  consideration by the scientific community, the

         22  reviewing groups and set aside.

         23                 In conclusion, reducing exposure of

         24  the public to secondhand smoke and workers is a

         25  laudable public health goal to propose regulations.
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          2                 Non-smokers should not face the

          3  annoyance and disease risk associated with inhaling

          4  secondhand smoke.

          5                 Workers should not be required to

          6  accept this exposure because smoking is allowed

          7  where they work. Solutions to eliminate this

          8  exposure, other than not allowing smoking indoors,

          9  have not been shown to be effective.

         10                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         11  speak with you today.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         13                 Whoever would like to go next.

         14                 MR. MOENCH: My name is Lou Moench. I

         15  reside in Santa Monica, California, and I am here to

         16  speak on behalf of Intro. 256.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is your mic on?

         18                 MR. MOENCH: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         20                 MR. MOENCH: Should I talk louder?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Move the mic

         22  closer.

         23                 MR. MOENCH: Hello?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: There you go.

         25                 MR. MOENCH: Thank you.
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          2                 Oh, before I begin I want to thank,

          3  on behalf of millions of grateful citizens of Los

          4  Angeles, we want to thank you for our new Police

          5  Chief. Thank you very much.

          6                 I am here today because I am a

          7  recovering bar owner. I owned and operated the

          8  nation's first smoke-free bar for 15 years, from

          9  1986 to 2000, and it went smoke-free in 1991. I have

         10  been a volunteer smoke-free bar advocate for the

         11  American Lung Association, the American Cancer

         12  Society and the State of California's Department of

         13  Health Services since 1997.

         14                 From November 2000 to April 2002, I

         15  worked for the City of Long Beach Department of

         16  Health Tobacco Education Program as the Long Beach

         17  Smoking Ordinance Compliance Specialist, meaning I

         18  investigated workplace bar and restaurant smoking

         19  violations.

         20                 The City of Long Beach was just named

         21  by the U.S. Census Bureau as the most ethnically

         22  diverse city in the country, and it has a smoking

         23  ordinance even stricter than the State of

         24  California's, and today I am the President of the

         25  California Voters Tobacco Education Project.
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          2                 Now, about California. Economically

          3  in the decade prior to 1998, when smoke-free bars

          4  were initiated, alcohol sales in California had been

          5  in rather serious decline, falling by about a third,

          6  and the bar business was depressed.

          7                 Since going smoke-free, we have

          8  dramatically reversed this trend. Bar and restaurant

          9  sales increased six percent in 1998, the first year

         10  we were smoke-free; eight percent in 1999; 9.8

         11  percent in 2000. So, you see, even the rate of

         12  increase is increasing. Instead of the predicted

         13  loss of hospitality jobs, we added 5.5 percent to

         14  our hospitality labor force since 1998.

         15                 And in terms of the dire, predictions

         16  of dire loss in the tourism business, we just etched

         17  out Florida to become the most popular tourist

         18  destination in America. All this while we're

         19  smoke-free.

         20                 Now, I wasn't able to get figures for

         21  the City of New York, but for the State of New York,

         22  per capita consumption of alcohol has declined about

         23  11 percent between 1990 and 2000. This is a bad sign

         24  for the industry and it's time for beverage

         25  purveyors of the state to ask themselves the
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          2  question, how can we dramatically increase our

          3  customer base? And the answer in California was

          4  resounding, go smoke-free.

          5                 Finally, I have spent years

          6  discussing, dissecting, debating and enforcing

          7  smoke-free bar policies with bar and restaurant

          8  owners and health professionals from all over the

          9  country, and can tell you unequivocally that

         10  recently raised fears of noisy crowds of smokers on

         11  sidewalks creating disturbances, I'll try to do this

         12  in one breath, piles of cigarette butts accumulating

         13  and gays being bashed while catching a smoke outside

         14  a club are completely, totally baseless, without

         15  foundation, and absolutely having no impact of any

         16  sort at all in any way, in all my experience, none

         17  of the issues has been reported, complained about to

         18  me, or in my presence even once.

         19                 Healthy business and health go

         20  hand-in-hand.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         22                 The next witness, please.

         23                 MR. DISTASIO: Yes, good afternoon.

         24  I'm Donald Distasio, Chief Executive Officer of the

         25  American Cancer Society of New York and New Jersey.
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          2                 On behalf of the tens of thousands of

          3  volunteers, donors, supporters, the staff of the

          4  American Cancer Society thank you for allowing me to

          5  voice unwaivering support for the smoke-free

          6  workplace act of 2002.

          7                 As a representative of the largest

          8  voluntary health agency in the world, I think you'll

          9  understand why I need to emphasize, even if it's for

         10  the zillionth time, that what we are all trying to

         11  do is prevent the deaths of more than 60,000 people

         12  a year from secondhand smoke.

         13                 I think Commissioner Friedan said it

         14  best when he noted recently that most people get the

         15  health argument. So, while I don't want to belabor

         16  the point, but I guess if you have not heard those

         17  words you have cancer or another dreadful disease,

         18  can you ever really get it?

         19                 Instead, I want to use my time to ask

         20  to listen to the scores of restaurateurs and bar

         21  owners on both sides of this debate, because the

         22  concerns they address is all too familiar and all

         23  too real, and particularly you'll hear that many

         24  small business owners are afraid, afraid of change

         25  that they've not gone through. Who could blame them?
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          2  There's so much information and misinformation

          3  coming at them. How do we cut the clutter and answer

          4  the legitimate question of whether or not this

          5  proposed law will hurt their business.

          6                 I propose that there is an abundant

          7  clarity on this issue if we choose to listen -

          8  listen not to me, but to successful entrepreneurs

          9  and business owners who can testify to their own

         10  experiences that a restaurant can go smoke-free, and

         11  prosper and make money.

         12                 Business owners such as Jimmy

         13  Rodriguez and Ellen Hart are telling us they can

         14  make money and save the lives of their employees and

         15  patrons. I understand fear of the unknown, but

         16  really the answers are really known in this case,

         17  Clean Indoor Air laws are not untested.

         18                 And since California went smoke-free,

         19  every category of business that serves alcohol

         20  reported higher taxable revenue. That's a fact we

         21  cannot dismiss.

         22                 And I will point out that at Neary's

         23  Restaurant, where the man said he got "clobbered" in

         24  those first months - well, let's remember that in

         25  those nine months he was basically competing with

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            147

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  bars that did have smoking. This is all about level

          3  playing field.

          4                 Further studies have tax sales from

          5  81 localities and six to eight consistently

          6  demonstrate that restricting smoking in restaurants

          7  has no effect or a positive effect on revenue, a

          8  poll that we, the American Heart Association,

          9  American Lung Association, American Cancer Society

         10  and our coalition took in August, found that more

         11  than seven in ten New Yorkers would go to bars as

         12  much, if not more often, if smoking was completely

         13  banned.

         14                 Nearly nine in ten New Yorkers would

         15  dine out as much or more often if smoking were

         16  completely prohibited in restaurants. And about the

         17  quality of life issues that has also recently

         18  surfaced, this is one part of the health argument

         19  where I do not need to inject the American Cancer

         20  Society's --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

         22  up?

         23                 MR. DISTASIO: -- Sobering viewpoint.

         24                 The American Cancer Society has, as a

         25  primary goal, to dramatically improve the quality of
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          2  lives of patients and families.

          3                 I cannot possibly in a few minutes

          4  describe the pain, agony and suffering. But let's

          5  not forget about the patient's quality of life.

          6                 On behalf of the American Cancer

          7  Society, I want to thank the Chair, and all the

          8  members of this Council and the sponsors for having

          9  the courage to step forward, and let's try to cross

         10  party lines and make this happen.

         11                 I certainly would love to be here to

         12  sign that bill on the Great American Smoke Out (sic)

         13  in November, so let's pass Smoke-Free Workplace Act

         14  of 2002. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. What's

         16  going to be unhealthy is how tired my wrist is going

         17  to be, so I'll try to refrain.

         18                 We will hear from the last member of

         19  the panel, but not the least, Dr. Chu.

         20                 DR. CHU: Good afternoon, Madam Chair,

         21  distinguished members of the Council. I'm Dr.

         22  Benjamin Chu, and President of the New York City

         23  Health and Hospitals Corporation, and in the

         24  interest of full disclosure, I am the former Chair

         25  of the New York City Coalition for a Smoke-Free
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          2  City.

          3                 I'm here to strongly support

          4  legislation proposed by Mayor Bloomberg and

          5  supported by many members of the City Council that

          6  will prohibit smoking in public places and in places

          7  of employment.

          8                 Few of us have been spared direct

          9  experiences with smoking-related tragedies - I am no

         10  exception. I watched my father die of lung cancer

         11  eight years ago, as a result of a 50-year history of

         12  smoking, an addiction he picked up, I might add,

         13  fighting for this country in Europe during World War

         14  II.

         15                 Nationally the American Cancer

         16  Society estimates that 25 percent of adults smoke.

         17  In New York City the prevalence of smoking is much

         18  higher in the communities that we at the Health and

         19  Hospitals Corporation serve, which are largely

         20  minority communities.

         21                 For example, some surveys of smoking

         22  prevalence in Harlem suggest that over 50 percent of

         23  the adult population smoke.

         24                 It's clear that among our patients

         25  hundreds of thousands are smokers. HHC treated more
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          2  than 20,000 people in our hospitals for

          3  smoking-related illnesses that were directly

          4  attributable to smoking.

          5                 This figure does not include patients

          6  we cared for that resulted from the effects of

          7  secondhand smoke on children and family members

          8  especially those with asthma.

          9                 Tobacco use has been cited as the

         10  chief avoidable cause of death for more than 10,000

         11  New Yorkers each year. Neighborhoods that have the

         12  highest rates of heart disease and lung cancer are

         13  in the communities of color, East Harlem, Central

         14  Harlem, Highbridge and Morrisania, Jamaica in

         15  Queens. And in Harlem, for example, the

         16  tobacco-related illnesses in Harlem Hospital, over

         17  800 patients last year were admitted for high blood

         18  pressure, cardiovascular disease, circulatory

         19  diseases, nearly 500 patients for pneumonia that can

         20  be directly related to smoking, more than 100

         21  patients were admitted for chronic conditions of the

         22  lung and 125 inpatients were treated for cancers

         23  that were directly related to lung -- smoking.

         24                 As this legislation recognizes

         25  secondhand or past smoking is just as deadly as
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          2  smoking, if this bill is enacted, thousands of lives

          3  will be saved. Tobacco use and prolonged exposure to

          4  secondhand smoke posed highly significant health

          5  threats. People who work in bars and restaurants

          6  sustain levels of exposure to secondhand smoke that

          7  lead to markedly increased incidence of disease.

          8  These individuals are approximately 50 percent more

          9  likely to contract lung disease than those who do

         10  not work in bars or restaurants.

         11                 Control of exposure to secondhand

         12  smoke is one critical component to reduce the

         13  pernicious effects of alcohol on our health.

         14                 Nationwide secondhand smoke causes up

         15  to 65,000 deaths a year, mostly from heart disease

         16  and 3,000 from lung cancer.

         17                 The overwhelming majority of the

         18  400,000 New Yorkers that Dr. Frieden talked about

         19  exposed to secondhand smoke are citizens of color,

         20  HHC's patients, and I think it is incumbent upon

         21  this Council to do something about it.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Sears.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,
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          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 It's good to see you again, Dr. Chu.

          4                 How many tertiary care facilities do

          5  you have in the City of New York, about 11?

          6                 DR. CHU: We have 11 acute care

          7  hospitals.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And of course

          9  what the Department of Health does, Dr. Frieden. So

         10  wouldn't you say that you actually have your pulse

         11  on the health of the City of New York because you

         12  are scattered throughout the entire City?

         13                 DR. CHU: Absolutely. And we serve

         14  largely minority communities which are

         15  disproportionately affected by smoke.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I understand

         17  that. And certainly within the City of New York, and

         18  with a population of 8 million people, the

         19  boundaries that you have in each of your boroughs is

         20  extraordinary, because you've got two facilities in

         21  Queens that have a boundary of about a million a

         22  piece and the population of Queens is about 2

         23  million. Therefore, the patients that you get just

         24  in Queens alone, if I were to think of the other

         25  four boroughs, you see an overwhelming increase of
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          2  not only the diseases that are airborne, but you see

          3  it what's happening throughout in secondhand smoke.

          4                 The Department of Health makes

          5  certain that children are inoculated when they go to

          6  school. You do everything you can with tuberculosis.

          7  Why would it behoove our government to exclude the

          8  protection of the people of the City of New York

          9  against what the statistics show overwhelmingly

         10  increasing the hazards of health care? Why should we

         11  ignore that, when government has such a major

         12  responsibility to take care of the public health?

         13                 See, I can't see an argument for it,

         14  but I think I'd like to raise it, because that's

         15  exactly what we're being asked to do, is to turn the

         16  cheek on what has proven to be a very major, major

         17  problem to health care.

         18                 And that doesn't mean you or anyone

         19  else or anyone on this Committee that's insensitive

         20  to the economics of the City of New York. We all

         21  live here and we all share in the problems. But we

         22  must also share in the responsibilities.

         23                 DR. CHU: Well, I think that what the

         24  Council is being asked is not to turn its cheek, but

         25  to face it squarely, and we have an opportunity to
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          2  do something very positive for the people of New

          3  York, and I think it's a very clear choice as far as

          4  I'm concerned, passage of this legislation would

          5  save a lot of lives.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          8  Stewart.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair.

         11                 Dr. Chu, I would like to welcome you

         12  back to City Hall again, and thank you for coming

         13  and testifying.

         14                 I have one simple question that I

         15  want to see if you can answer for me.

         16                 With the passage of this bill, how

         17  much would that change with terms of the folks

         18  within the districts? How much would that change in

         19  terms of statistics?

         20                 DR. CHU: Well, I think that it's hard

         21  to quantify, but I know that in the earlier survey,

         22  out of the survey of 10,000 people that there is an

         23  estimated 400,000 New York City residents that are

         24  exposed to secondhand smoke, and from our statistics

         25  the overwhelming majority has got to be in the
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          2  communities that we serve, communities of color.

          3                 And if we just stop the exposure for

          4  as many of those 400,000 people to secondhand smoke

          5  either through bars or restaurants, it can't help

          6  but make an impact on disease.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Can I finish?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You heard the

         10  last question I asked the last panel about the

         11  rights of the workers, and one of the speakers

         12  indicated that it's a choice basically between the

         13  health and the job. How do you answer that? How do

         14  you clarify that?

         15                 DR. CHU: Well, you see, I think

         16  that's a theoretical argument that the speaker was

         17  making, and the fact of the matter is, you know, we

         18  take care of the undocumented that come in with the

         19  ill-effects of being exposed to smoking. So, I

         20  really don't see how that argument holds any water.

         21                 There is no evidence that shows that

         22  anyone, undocumented or otherwise, would necessarily

         23  lose their job as a result of this kind of

         24  legislation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And I
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          2  just hear my colleagues and want to let them know

          3  that Dr. Chu at the Health and Hospitals Corporation

          4  has begun a new cardiac initiative and we're going

          5  to have him do a presentation that we will invite

          6  all the Council members to before one of our

          7  upcoming Stated Council meetings. It's related,

          8  obviously, to the matters we're talking about, so I

          9  just wanted to let people, one, know about this new

         10  initiative, which is something to be applauded; and,

         11  two, if you have thoughts relating to heart disease

         12  or et cetera, during this hearing, to make a note

         13  because Dr. Chu is going to be very gracious and

         14  come back and talk to us specifically about that.

         15  Not in a hearing format but in a more formal kind of

         16  roundtable thing before one of our next Stateds.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 And next we're going to hear from our

         19  next panel. Thank you all. Which is Audrey Silk,

         20  Linda Stewart, Sidney Zion and James Tom. And

         21  they're followed by Carrie Sunday, Annmarie

         22  Charlesworth, James Repase, Blair Horner and Jerry

         23  Cuozzo.

         24                 You all can testify in whatever order

         25  you would like, and just identify yourself for the
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          2  record. If the light is off, the mic is on.

          3                 Go ahead, whoever would like to go

          4  first.

          5                 MS. SILK: I'd like to state first and

          6  to let everybody know that we've presented 5,000

          7  signatures.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If we could just

          9  get quiet in the Chambers. As you're existing, if we

         10  could just have quiet.

         11                 We'll give you those ten seconds

         12  back.

         13                 MS. SILK: I just want to state off

         14  the top that we want everybody here to know that we

         15  have now presented to you 5,000 signatures of City

         16  residents and tourists that oppose this smoking ban

         17  and there are more to come.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 MS. SILK: My name is Audrey Silk. I

         20  am the founder of New York City citizens, lobbying

         21  on smoker harassment. I'm here to speak on behalf of

         22  these establishment customers and how smokers are

         23  being treated.

         24                 You heard all the health scare

         25  stories and stats about secondhand smoke, but I'd
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          2  like to ask you some questions.

          3                 Have you ever questioned the scares?

          4                 Have you asked them to show you their

          5  studies? Have you read those studies?

          6                 Do you actually know how to read a

          7  scientific study?

          8                 Have you also read the published peer

          9  reviewed articles that criticize the studies the

         10  scarers want you to see?

         11                 Have you also read the published peer

         12  viewed studies that show the opposite of what the

         13  scarers want you to see?

         14                 Do you know that the type of research

         15  used, and the epidemiologist that just spoke can

         16  attest to this, that the type of research used to

         17  study secondhand smoke cannot prove cause.  That

         18  saying secondhand smoke kills as if the connection

         19  is without question, is an absolute false statement.

         20                 Have you read the 80-page white paper

         21  we've submitted about all the science we've heard

         22  here today?

         23                 Everything in here is documented and

         24  cited.

         25                 The EPA report of 1993 was
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          2  invalidated and vacated and thrown out by junk

          3  science. It is still in Local Law Number 5. Why is

          4  that? It's as if a criminal could say I don't

          5  believe what you just determined by the courts. I am

          6  not guilty, I'm out of here. It's still in that law.

          7                 OSHA, after 12 years decided they

          8  would not -- just recently, would not create federal

          9  guidelines for smoke-free legislation, that there

         10  was not enough evidence presented to go smoke-free

         11  to the extent that the anti-smoking lobbyists would

         12  like.

         13                 And they tried to sue OSHA, and when

         14  OSHA said, well, we're going to come out with

         15  something that says there can be smoking here or

         16  there, they withdrew their lawsuit because they

         17  didn't want that truth to come out. And OSHA now

         18  dropped their federal guideline standards.

         19                 The Department of Energy, our own US

         20  government did a study by putting personal air

         21  monitors on wait staff and found that the amount of

         22  exposure during a regular shift is up to 85 percent

         23  below OSHA's permissible exposure levels. They have

         24  a standard. They have levels of harm that need to be

         25  reached before you are harmed. They do not.
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          2                 Dr. Frieden -- I'm sorry, you know,

          3  we have no chance. So many people have had the

          4  science, please let me continue a little bit longer.

          5                 Dr. Frieden cites a Japanese study

          6  that exposed 15 -- 15, that's not enough for a study

          7  -- healthy young men to an unspecified amount of

          8  smoke for half an hour. It showed no affect in basal

          9  coronary flow velocity, heart rate of blood

         10  pressure, but a minute quickly reversible reduction

         11  in coronary flow velocity reserves. Yet, the same

         12  kind of moderate reversal of vascular changes were

         13  observed in healthy people who had just eaten

         14  dinner, and of course, that's dinner in a smoke-free

         15  lab.

         16                 Actually, the changes brought on by

         17  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

         19  up?

         20                 MS. SILK: -- Bacon and eggs took

         21  longer to reverse. He is making a mockery of his

         22  profession. Just because a person's name is followed

         23  by impressive sounding degrees, that person is still

         24  a human being, and that degree does not represent

         25  the character of the person who holds it.
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          2                 Human beings are prone to biases and

          3  to imposing their personal preferences on others.

          4  That includes our own Health Commissioner.

          5                 I'll wrap it up with --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Please.

          7                 MS. SILK: The war you are waging is

          8  against us. You have heard nothing but how smoking

          9  hurts people. Are we here about secondhand smoke, or

         10  about getting me to stop smoking. Because all the

         11  evidence is is that they want me to stop smoking for

         12  my own good.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Please sum up.

         14                 MS. SILK: -- It's none of their

         15  business.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

         17  up.

         18                 MS. SILK: Contrary to propaganda

         19  tactics, we do not promote the interest of the

         20  tobacco industry, we promote the interests of

         21  private citizens' lives and a guarantee in our

         22  constitution that bullies do not oppress an

         23  unpopular minority.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         25                 Next witness, please.
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          2                 MS. STEWART: I hope the time to get

          3  the mic didn't come off my time.

          4                 The premise that this is about

          5  bartenders' health is pretty well busted by a law

          6  that would ban smoking in outdoor cafes, outdoors in

          7  New York, where anything in smoke is diluted into

          8  billionths of a billionth of a nanogram and blown

          9  away in the breeze, and where everything in smoke is

         10  already found in the air and in vastly greater

         11  quantities.

         12                 The premise that this is about any

         13  non-smoker's health is totally busted by a law that

         14  would ban smoking, quote, from the law in and about

         15  any airport, and, quote, upon any farm, bulkhead,

         16  dock, dry dock, shipyard pier, wharf, and further,

         17  quote, onboard any ship, berth or moored in a city

         18  port, says the law. And with protections to ban

         19  smoking in central and other parks in Coney Island

         20  and other beaches.

         21                 This kind of gives away the game.

         22  This is not about public health, this is actually

         23  about an irrational crusade neatly ducking for

         24  rational cover. Public health makes a good duck.

         25                 Jim Crowe, as some of you may recall,
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          2  used it, too. But Jim Crowe was at least kind enough

          3  to allow people of color to have their own ghettos.

          4  This law, which is the kind of law that led to the

          5  Stonewall Riots, doesn't even allow for that. This

          6  is real nasty stuff.

          7                 Beyond Carrie Nation in search of her

          8  Andrew Volsted, though it's certainly that, too,

          9  this is something along the lines of the final

         10  solution to this smoker problem. Using slanderous

         11  propaganda manufacturing hatred and fear, creating a

         12  class of scapegoats in second class citizens while

         13  giving glowing status to snitches, all those bratty

         14  little grown-ups who like to run and rap to the

         15  teacher, or the hall monitors in streets that

         16  flourish under the fascism of either the right or

         17  left. It annihilates the principles of private

         18  property, personal autonomy, peaceable assembly,

         19  unabridged privileges and even the very concept of

         20  adulthood itself.

         21                 We could call this ashism (phonetic)

         22  instead of fascism, but it's really the same hustle.

         23  Nor am I the first to observe that this crusade has

         24  exceeded its rational limits.

         25                 Russell Baker, in a while ago piece
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          2  in the New York Times simply said that it entered

          3  the danger stage."What we have here is a crusade in

          4  its second phase," Baker said. Crusades typically

          5  start by being admirable, proceed to being foolish

          6  and end by being dangerous. The crusade against

          7  smoking is now clearly into the second phase where

          8  foolishness abounds. But now something very sinister

          9  is developing, this crusade is entering its

         10  dangerous stage. The true crusader doesn't stop at

         11  burning the village, killing the women and children

         12  and making off with the cattle if that's what it

         13  takes to purify the world.

         14                 Michael Kelly in the New Republic

         15  gave it another name: "It's been called the Nanny

         16  state, but that's far too kind a term. It's too

         17  cold, too cruel, too implacable, too illiberal to be

         18  a nanny, it's the Nurse Ratchet state.

         19                 It turns out this new model is as

         20  devoted to spectacular schemes of social engineering

         21  as the old one, and it has added this awful idea

         22  that these schemes may be achieved through a

         23  creative and brutal system of mandated behaviorism

         24  in which the State uses its immense power to force

         25  targeted citizens and entities to voluntarily accept
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          2  the violation of their rights in an encroachment on

          3  their liberties."

          4                 Kelly continues: "The two principle

          5  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you sum up,

          7  please?

          8                 MS. STEWART: Give me just another

          9  little space here, double spaced, come on.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just sum up,

         11  please.

         12                 MS. STEWART: What he is saying is the

         13  power that is being exercised here is the power "the

         14  framers most wanted to limit, the power to

         15  criminalize and punish, to deprive a citizen who

         16  violates the state's wishes of his liberty and his

         17  property.

         18                 Again, you gave the other people, the

         19  other side got to talk on and on, let me give you

         20  one more quote.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's actually

         22  not true, but you could give us one more quote. I've

         23  been the same with every side, but give us one more

         24  quote. Go ahead.

         25                 MS. STEWART: All right, let me. It's
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          2  along the same lines with Jeff Jacobi in the Boston

          3  Globe, is simply saying that this is an attempt of

          4  one group of people to impose their tastes and

          5  preferences on the other, that is illiberal,

          6  indictive and intolerant.

          7                 I would like to add simply one quick

          8  point. My grandparents came to New York City in the

          9  1890s to escape selective repression, including

         10  exclusion from public life. It had never occurred to

         11  me that three generations later I, myself, might be

         12  driven to escape from New York and for not

         13  dissimilar reasons.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         15                 Can we hear from the next witness,

         16  please?

         17                 Go ahead.

         18                 MR. TOM: Yes, Council members. My

         19  name is James Tom and my occupation is a scientist.

         20                 I worked in the past in the Wadsworth

         21  Center in Albany with the Department of Health doing

         22  politically charged research on the PCBs in the

         23  Hudson River, and I now currently work in the

         24  pharmaceutical industry.

         25                 Let me tell you, in my experience
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          2  I've seen my share of bias and exaggerated studies

          3  from all sides of many issues, but nothing compares

          4  to the agenda-driven hype, exaggeration and blatant

          5  misinformation from the studies done on the

          6  so-called dangers of secondhand smoke, and you're

          7  about to pass a law that could be economically

          8  devastating to so many New Yorkers, based on the

          9  studies that have no merit.

         10                 Nothing shows us more than Mayor

         11  Bloomberg's current new study and radio ads about

         12  how the air in the smoky bar is 40 times more

         13  polluted than in the Holland Tunnel.

         14                 Why, yes, it is true, but it is total

         15  spin, the Mayor is being very deceptive, shown by

         16  the fact he hasn't released this study to the

         17  public.

         18                 For one, as a Daily News reporter,

         19  the study didn't measure carbon monoxide but instead

         20  it measured airborne particles, which includes

         21  things like pollen and mold spores, which I can

         22  guarantee you are neither in cigarette smoke or car

         23  exhaust.

         24                 Second, the perception is that

         25  tunnels like the Holland, because they are closed
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          2  and have so many cars going through them, have very

          3  dirty air inside. However, in reality, the Holland

          4  and other tunnels have the most amazing ventilation

          5  systems in them as well.

          6                 Quoted from a Port Authority Holland

          7  Tunnel History Webpage. Holland tunnel engineers

          8  designed the automatic ventilation system that

          9  produces pure air under the Hudson than was found

         10  above. Fresh air supplied to the tunnel every 90

         11  seconds, the air is moved by 84 fans of 6,000 total

         12  horsepower.

         13                 The ventilation system of the Holland

         14  Tunnel is so good that in fact when a chemical truck

         15  carrying deadly carbon disulfate caught fire in the

         16  tunnel in 1949, no one died of poisonous gas, carbon

         17  monoxide or poisonous smoke inhalation.

         18                 The air in the tunnel is so good

         19  there is actually a proposal to put a bike path

         20  through it.

         21                 So, the Mayor is being deceptive

         22  because, yes, while the air is cleaner in the

         23  Holland Tunnel, the air would be cleaner anywhere in

         24  the City, that includes a bar that allowed smoking

         25  or not.
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          2                 Due to my limited speaking time here,

          3  I cannot go into any more studies, but let me assure

          4  you, this type of scare tactic is used in all other

          5  secondhand studies.

          6                 But the last thing I wanted to note

          7  today, I have a friend in Upstate New York, he's

          8  currently in the Airforce, he's coming home for a

          9  few weeks this summer. Me and him and other friends,

         10  smokers and non-smokers alike, were coming here to

         11  hang out in Manhattan for a few days. But since

         12  setting up this trip, making hotel reservations,

         13  transportation and such must be done well in

         14  advance, and we don't know how the smoking ban is

         15  going to turn out, we've already decided we're going

         16  to Montreal instead.

         17                 So, the money that would have been

         18  spent here will now be spent in Montreal. Between

         19  us, let me guarantee you, we will spend a couple of

         20  thousand dollars. So already proposing this smoking,

         21  New York City has already lost so much money it

         22  desperately needs to another city.

         23                 In the close, all I gotta say is that

         24  this is a very sad day in the history of the United

         25  States of America, when I as a citizen of this great
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          2  nation have to go to a foreign country because of

          3  lack of freedom here.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Next,

          6  please.

          7                 MR. ZION: My name is Sidney Zion. I'm

          8  a newspaper man, and I don't know what I'm doing

          9  here because I died long ago if the Mayor is right

         10  and his experts are. I'm dead, and I'm here for the

         11  living dead, because in the newspaper rooms in all

         12  of my 40 years, until recently, there was so much

         13  smoke at deadline time and the rest of the day, you

         14  couldn't see your way clear to the desk.

         15                 I also am a lawyer, and I worked in

         16  New Jersey for a long time when everybody smoked,

         17  the jury and everybody else, and my father was a

         18  cigar smoker. So, I tell you again, I just had a

         19  chest x-ray, and I'm okay.

         20                 I don't understand how all of this

         21  could be true, and all these bartenders, I've been

         22  in more bars than I've been in sitting rooms, I

         23  assure you that, and I was in Gallaghers the other

         24  day, and there's two guys named Nick, and one of

         25  them is 84 and the other one just turned 83 or
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          2  something, and they didn't even cough. They've been

          3  working in joints since prohibition and they don't

          4  even cough, and they smoke on top of it. So, you

          5  know.

          6                 Now, there's so much hype going on,

          7  there's so much disinformation. My friend the Mayor,

          8  and he is my friend, he is, he thought what we're

          9  doing is misinformation? I mean, to announce that a

         10  guy, a guy walks into a smoke-filled room for 30

         11  minutes and he can get a heart attack, then I don't

         12  have a heart, and neither do you, I don't think.

         13                 So, look, I appeal to this body here.

         14  I know not many are left, but you'll all hear about

         15  it, I'm sure. Don't turn this town into a school,

         16  we're a rambunctious city, we're not California,

         17  where it's cold, where it's cold and it's damp.

         18  We're New York City. We're the ones that went

         19  against the Volsted Act, and that's what you're

         20  doing here.

         21                 Remember this, too. I've heard some

         22  words spoken outside these Chambers that there are

         23  members of the Council who really think it's the

         24  Mayor's bill, and more or less he'll be the guy to

         25  either get the praise or the dumping on later.
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          2  Nobody remembers who signed the Volsted act, what

          3  they remember is the Congress that passed it. It was

          4  a disaster to America.

          5                 There isn't much difference between

          6  -- it's prohibition, any way you look at it, it is

          7  prohibition. They should have to come forward with

          8  enormous proof, but they don't.

          9                 When you look at what was just said

         10  by my colleague here, the US Department of Energy

         11  went into 16 cities and wired up people who were not

         12  smokers, bartenders and waitresses. Sixteen cities,

         13  the biggest study ever made, they tried to even

         14  suppress it. It was hard to find it, because they

         15  came out nothing, nadda.

         16                 Now, against that, Mike is right,

         17  they're wrong, OSHA is wrong, Giuliani is wrong,

         18  Peter Vallone, Sr. is wrong, and Mike is right.

         19  Common sense is wrong, because like I say, I never

         20  met a bartender who told me he was in trouble over

         21  this stuff.

         22                 And let me tell you about the

         23  business end, one thing. There is a restaurant in

         24  this City that I think all of you know, 21. And it's

         25  a great restaurant, and the bar at 21 used to be
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          2  three deep. Nobody is at that bar anymore because

          3  they waited until about two years ago to put a

          4  little section in. The bartenders, it was the

          5  hardest job to get. There was an exodus of

          6  bartenders when this happened. There's a service

          7  bar, the whole bar is now a service bar, so don't

          8  think it's not going to hurt.

          9                 But I don't just look at it as money

         10  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

         12  up?

         13                 MR. ZION: I will.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         15                 MR. ZION: I don't look at it just as

         16  money, I think the question here is liberty. And

         17  what I don't want you to ever do, please don't,

         18  don't put a no smoking sign on the Statue of Liberty

         19  so that everybody that comes into this City thinks

         20  that they're no good and we are.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         22                 I just want to clarify for the

         23  record, I believe when Ms. Stewart testified you

         24  referenced part of the bill, it's not a question,

         25  it's just a clarification for the record so the
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          2  audience knows. The part of the bill that you read

          3  regarding bulkhead, farm, dock, dry dock, et cetera,

          4  is not a new proposed law. The bill really restates

          5  the existing Building Code. That is presently the

          6  Building Code, that is not anything new.  And the

          7  reference to Central Park or beaches is not included

          8  in this bill. That was a statement made by some

          9  anti-smoking advocates that that is what they would

         10  like to see next. There is no legislation to that

         11  effect.

         12                 I know the article that was on that

         13  in the paper was quite confusing, because I was even

         14  confused when I saw it. So, I just wanted to clarify

         15  those two points in case there was any confusion for

         16  the audience.

         17                 If you'd like to see where that is in

         18  the existing Building Code, you are free to call my

         19  office after the hearing and we could send you that

         20  existing part of the law.

         21                 Just so you know, when you read

         22  bills, the underlined part is what's new, if it's

         23  not underlined it means it's restating what is

         24  already in the present law.

         25                 With that said, I have one question
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          2  before I call on my colleagues.

          3                 Ms. Stewart, did you compare this

          4  bill to Jim Crowe? Can you pull the mic over to you.

          5                 MS. STEWART: Can we do something

          6  about that feedback?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Not really. Sorry.

          8                 MS. STEWART: I said that one of the

          9  rationalizations --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Maybe you can try

         11  the other mic, because nobody can hear you. Why

         12  don't you turn that one off.

         13                 One of the rationalizations for Jim

         14  Crowe was that it was a question of public health.

         15  If a black person and a white person ostensively

         16  drank from the same fountain, swam in the same

         17  swimming pool, rested in the same restaurant, or ate

         18  from the same restaurant plate, even though the

         19  plate had been washed in between, the premise was

         20  that poor whitey would sicken and die. I'm saying

         21  that public health has been used as a con. There's a

         22  wonderful book that I commend to you called Silent

         23  Travelers, written by a man named Alan Krout, who is

         24  a Professor of American History. And he writes the

         25  history of the abuse of public health, how it has
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          2  been used to back up prejudices against Chinese in

          3  the American West, in the history of New York

          4  against the Italians, public health has always been

          5  a scam. There has always been a science behind it.

          6                 Jews were prevented from coming into

          7  the country because a psychiatrist named Henry

          8  Goddard did a study on Ellis Island that ostensively

          9  proved that "80 percent of Jews were of moran

         10  grade." Hitler proved that Jews were the vector of

         11  tuberculosis. I'm just saying that public health and

         12  the science on one side of it, when you don't read

         13  the other side, which is why we want to enter this

         14  thing into the record, can be used to rationalize a

         15  lot of irrational pre-existing biases.

         16                 We understand that the City does not

         17  like smokers or that the people running the City

         18  right now do not like smokers. We have been called

         19  crazy and stupid and a bunch of other things, but it

         20  is one thing to just admit that you are prejudice

         21  and you think a bunch of people are dirty and filthy

         22  and have dirty, filthy habits, that quickly moves on

         23  into persecuting them and excluding them from public

         24  life. So, yes, in that sense that Jim Crowe used the

         25  same rationale to irrationally exclude people, I was
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          2  making that analogy.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Before I call on

          4  my colleague, I think I'll take the liberty as Chair

          5  to say that I take offense to the comparison of this

          6  bill to Jim Crowe. It's not really a question. It's

          7  just a statement, my prerogative to make the

          8  statement as the Chair that I take great offense to

          9  that.

         10                 (Applause.)

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Please, no

         12  applause on either side. We're going to be like

         13  across the board on this, I'm just taking one

         14  personal liberty in this hearing that I take great

         15  offense to that. We met last week, so we've had a

         16  dialogue myself and CLASH, we'll have future

         17  dialogues, this does not mean you should not call my

         18  office and have future dialogue, but I am just

         19  shocked and offended by that characterization.

         20                 That said, I call on my colleague

         21  Council Member Oddo who has a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         23  Chair, and minority side of the aisle echoes your

         24  sentiments on that.

         25                 Sid, I'm glad to hear that you're
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          2  healthy. And I was going to say a joke that you

          3  didn't have to tell us that you had no heart, we

          4  knew that when you said you were an attorney, but I

          5  don't know how many people realize I'm an attorney,

          6  and that was a self-effacing moment, so...

          7                 The Chair just took the liberty of

          8  sanitizing the record, and I just want to add for

          9  the record that the EPA still stands by its study,

         10  as does just about every major legitimate medical

         11  entity.

         12                 I'm not quite sure, and I guess we

         13  can debate whether or not the judge invalidated the

         14  actual science, what I do want to add for the record

         15  is the fact that the judge, Judge Ostein in a

         16  previous life was a lobbyist for the tobacco

         17  industry.

         18                 I throw that out there --

         19                 MS. SILK: No, he was not.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You'll get a

         21  chance to respond. Please let the Council Members

         22  finish their questions. No one has interrupted the

         23  panels when they've tried to respond to the

         24  questions. The only thing we've kept people to is

         25  the three-minute limit. Please let Council Members
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          2  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I have one

          4  simple question for Audrey.

          5                 Audrey, do you believe that nicotine

          6  is addictive?

          7                 MS. SILK: Why do we need to discuss

          8  my smoking habit when we're here to discuss that I'm

          9  allegedly harming others. This is two separate

         10  issues.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That's fine.

         12  That's a fair answer. You refuse to answer the

         13  question, that's fine. That's fine.

         14                 MS. SILK: I believe smoking is a

         15  risky choice to make. Let's keep it clear, we're

         16  talking about how I may be harming somebody else,

         17  not my own habit.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I asked you a

         19  question if you believe nicotine is addictive. If

         20  you choose not to answer it, that's certainly your

         21  prerogative.

         22                 MS. SILK: That is a game. That is a

         23  game.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank you.

         25                 Do any of my other colleagues have
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          2  questions for this panel?

          3                 MR. ZION: I just want to say

          4  something about, you started with me on the EPA --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

          6                 MR. ZION: The decision stands. This

          7  decision stands, it's been five years. I think they

          8  filed a notice of appeal but didn't push it along.

          9                 Now, one other thing, just a point of

         10  personal privilege. Everybody is talking about you

         11  can run out and smoke. Hey, I'm a cigar smoker, just

         12  like Peter Vallone, Sr. We can't go out for one

         13  minute. A good cigar is 45 minutes to an hour, and a

         14  good cigar. As Mr. Moratorian (phonetic) said, is

         15  the smoke. So, I won't add the other part of what he

         16  said because there's too many women on the panel.

         17                 Anyway, thank you all for all of your

         18  attention.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 MR. ZION: I appreciate it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm going to call

         22  up the next panel which is Carrie Sunday, Annmarie

         23  Charlesworth, James Repace, Blair Horner, Jerry

         24  Cuozzo. They will be followed by Robert Bookman,

         25  David Rabin, David McWater and John Blair.
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          2                 If any of the panelists have

          3  materials, please give them to the Sergeant will

          4  give them to the Council members or submit them to

          5  the record.

          6                 You all should start. If those who

          7  are leaving the Chambers could kind of try to do it

          8  quickly and quietly, that would be great. Thank you.

          9                 If we can just have quiet so the next

         10  panel could start.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. CUOZZO: Good afternoon. My name

         13  is Jerry Cuozzo, and I live in Councilman Vallone

         14  Jr.'s district.

         15                 I have been around the restaurant

         16  business for most of my life. Actually, it wouldn't

         17  be much of an exaggeration to say that I was raised

         18  in a restaurant. My family has been in the business

         19  for as long as I can remember, and I've never

         20  strayed. It's a good living, and I enjoy the work.

         21                 For over 20 years now I've been a

         22  waiter and a bartender. During this time, the

         23  restaurant industry has seen some pretty drastic

         24  changes.

         25                 Take, for example, people's eating

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            182

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  habits. I remember when the American plate consisted

          3  of meat and potatoes and possibly a vegetable.

          4                 There was certainly no such thing as

          5  a veggie burger on the menu, but now it seems as

          6  though half of New York is a vegetarian.

          7  Unfortunately, back in those days, most people also

          8  got a big fat serving of cigarette smoke for

          9  dessert.

         10                 To some, the controversy involving

         11  the dangers of secondhand smoke is new, but not to

         12  me. I've been dealing with it for over two decades.

         13                 The things that start happening to me

         14  when I first get to work are always the same.

         15                 First, I notice that my nose gets

         16  stuffy and my eyes water, then my throat gets itchy

         17  and usually leads to coughing.

         18                 I get slight pains in my chest on

         19  long shifts, because I'm used to this exposure, my

         20  body adjusts, but it often takes more than a day to

         21  recover. Of course, then it's time to return to

         22  work. A vicious cycle.

         23                 Fortunately, over the years it has

         24  been proven that smoking kills and actions have been

         25  taken to --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir, if you could

          3  just hang on one second?

          4                 If the folks in the back of the

          5  Chamber could either take their seats or exit the

          6  Chamber quietly, because it's rendering this panel

          7  unable to testify.

          8                 I apologize for that. Go right ahead.

          9                 MR. CUOZZO: Thanks.

         10                 Fortunately, over the years it has

         11  been proven that smoking kills.

         12                 Actions have been taken to prevent

         13  many people's exposure. For some reason, though,

         14  neither the state nor the City have passed any laws

         15  that protect me, and I don't know why.

         16                 Some laws have passed that are

         17  supposed to protect certain people in certain

         18  restaurants but they don't work.

         19                 If I didn't think secondhand smoke

         20  posed a serious threat to my well-being, I wouldn't

         21  be here right now.

         22                 I live a healthy lifestyle, I eat

         23  right, I exercise often, no matter what I do, I

         24  can't escape this secondhand smoke. And it's not

         25  right that I have to worry about my future and my
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          2  future health due to choices somebody else makes for

          3  me.

          4                 It's not right that I am forced to

          5  share in other people's bad habits. It's not right

          6  that I may have to someday choose between my health

          7  and my career. It's an impossible choice that I'd

          8  rather not make.

          9                 Bartending allows me the freedom I

         10  want and the money I need to support myself. I'm not

         11  saying I want people to stop smoking, I'm just

         12  asking you to make sure smokers aren't allowed to

         13  blow smoke in my face anymore.

         14                 Please do me and all of the

         15  bartenders a huge service, pass this law. I deserve

         16  a safe workplace as much as you do. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         18                 Okay, the next speaker could go,

         19  please.

         20                 MS. CHARLESWORTH: Good afternoon. My

         21  name is Annmarie Charlesworth, and I'm a researcher

         22  at the University of California, San Francisco. I

         23  co-wrote and published with Professor Stan Glantz

         24  the 1999 JAMA article, "Tourism and Hotel Revenues

         25  Before and After Passage of Smoke-Free Restaurant
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          2  Ordinances" which concluded that smoke-free

          3  ordinances do not adversely effect, and may

          4  increase, tourist business.

          5                 Our study was conducted in response

          6  to tobacco industry claims that tourist business

          7  would decrease in cities and states throughout the

          8  United States, including New York City, if

          9  smoke-free ordinances were enacted.

         10                 We addressed tourist revenues because

         11  previous research by Professor Glantz and many

         12  others have already disproved the tobacco industry

         13  claims that smoke-free restaurant ordinances are bad

         14  for business.

         15                 Researchers have studied over 100 of

         16  the 341 places with smoke-free ordinances, and

         17  contrary to claims made by the tobacco industry, its

         18  allies and front groups, have found no negative

         19  economic impact on restaurant or bar revenues.

         20                 The tobacco industry opposes

         21  smoke-free restaurant ordinances because smoke-free

         22  ordinances help people to quit smoking and hurt

         23  tobacco industry profits.

         24                 Working through front groups and well

         25  organized public relations campaigns, the tobacco
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          2  industry creates and perpetuates myths that work on

          3  the fears of business owners.

          4                 Such propaganda typically sounds like

          5  a claim made here in 1995, when New York City was

          6  considering enacting the Smoke Free Air Act: "New

          7  York stands to lose millions of dollars as the

          8  meetings and conventions that bring visitors from

          9  all over the world take their business and vacations

         10  elsewhere.

         11                 Our study examined New York City tax

         12  data from 1989 through 1998 and concluded that

         13  tobacco industry claims that New York City would

         14  lose millions of dollars in tourist revenues were

         15  false. To the contrary, the Smoke-Free Air Act was

         16  associated with a significant increase in tourist

         17  business.

         18                 In addition to New York City, our

         19  study examined five other cities and three states

         20  where an impact on tourism became an issue in

         21  passing smoke-free restaurant ordinances: Los

         22  Angeles, San Francisco, Flagstaff, Mesa, Boulder,

         23  California, Utah and Vermont.

         24                 We obtained hotel sales tax data and

         25  retail sales tax data from these places dating back
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          2  five years before the smoke-free legislation was

          3  enacted, and for at least one year afterward, until

          4  the date of our study, 1998.

          5                 The economic impact of the smoke-free

          6  restaurant ordinances was considered from these

          7  vantage points: hotel sales before and after passage

          8  of the smoke-free legislation, hotel sales at a

          9  fraction of total retail sales in that locality

         10  before and after passage of the smoke-free

         11  legislation, and to control for the overall national

         12  economy, individual hotel sales as part of the

         13  overall hotel sales nationally.

         14                 The results of our study included the

         15  following:

         16                 Smoke-free restaurant ordinances were

         17  associated with an increase in hotel revenues in

         18  Utah, Los Angeles, Mesa and New York City;

         19  smoke-free restaurant ordinances were associated

         20  with no significant effect on hotel revenues in

         21  California, Vermont, Boulder and San Francisco; and

         22  a smoke-free ordinance was --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

         24  up, please?

         25                 MS. CHARLESWORTH: Sure.
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          2                 So, in addition to the numerous other

          3  studies that have consistently proven that

          4  smoke-free ordinances do not hurt restaurants or

          5  bars, our study demonstrated that smoke-free

          6  ordinances do not hurt tourist business. Period.

          7                 I'm in support.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 Who would ever like to go next.

         11                 MR. REPACE: Sure. Madam Chair,

         12  members of the Council, my name is James Repace. I

         13  am a secondhand smoke consultant from the

         14  Washington, D.C. area.

         15                 I have worked at the United States

         16  Environmental Protection Agency, the Occupational

         17  Safety and Health Administration and the Naval

         18  Research Laboratory. I have been in business as a

         19  secondhand smoke consultant for the last four years.

         20                 I'd like to start out by addressing

         21  the air pollution levels that the Department of

         22  Environmental Protection measured in the smoky bars.

         23  They exceeded the national ambient air quality

         24  standard by a factor of --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mr. Repace, could

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            189

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  you just bring the mic a little closer to you. I'm

          3  having trouble hearing you.

          4                 MR. REPACE: Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          6                 MR. REPACE: The air pollution levels

          7  that were measured in the smoky bars were a shade

          8  under what we used to call the air pollution

          9  emergency level. In other words, if you had that

         10  much air pollution in the outdoor air, you'd

         11  probably have to stop traffic and shut businesses

         12  down. It was extremely polluted.

         13                 Using methods that I published in the

         14  peer review literature, I have been able to estimate

         15  the impact on the health of bar workers in New York

         16  City in the five boroughs, and I estimate that per

         17  100,000 workers at risk, there would be about 300

         18  deaths per year among that group. And if you add up

         19  restaurant workers, bar workers and hotel and motel

         20  workers in the five boroughs, it's almost 200,000

         21  workers.

         22                 How many actually are exposed to

         23  those levels remains to be determined, but clearly

         24  there are almost 7,000 bartenders and an unknown

         25  number of restaurant and hotel workers who also
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          2  serve in bars as cocktail servers. So, you have

          3  certainly thousands of workers who are at risk.

          4                 Now, a lot of people have testified

          5  on the economics. I have a graph in my testimony

          6  that shows how the economics for the sector in the

          7  industry in California that serves alcohol improved

          8  after the smoke-free bar and smoke-free restaurant

          9  laws. And people always want to point out, well,

         10  somehow California is different from New York, well,

         11  there's only one percentage point difference in the

         12  smoking prevalence in Los Angeles, Long Beach, than

         13  there is in metropolitan New York.

         14                 I would also point out that the City

         15  of Ottowa, in Canada, which is pretty far north, had

         16  banned smoking in bars and restaurants this year.

         17                 Finally, I would like to point out

         18  that ventilation doesn't work. I have published

         19  extensively on this in more than 50 papers.

         20  Ventilation would have to be supplied at

         21  Tornado-like levels to clear the air in a bar.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         24                 Okay.

         25                 MS. SUNDAY: Madam Chairwoman and
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          2  members of the Health Committee. Thank you for the

          3  opportunity to testify on behalf of workers in

          4  smoke-free workplaces. My name is Carrie Sunday and

          5  I'm an artist and a waitress at a large midtown

          6  hotel bar.

          7                 Let me begin by saying that I don't

          8  dislike my job. I love my job. And I love the people

          9  whom with I work with. They are amazing. They've

         10  become my family.

         11                 I am fond of our patrons, whom I

         12  developed friendships with over the past seven years

         13  of my employment. I have full benefits, paid

         14  vacations, and make a phenomenal salary. This is not

         15  the kind of job that one can just leave and find a

         16  replacement, nor do I want to have to.

         17                 Unfortunately, because of the degree

         18  of secondhand smoke I am forced to inhale during a

         19  normal shift, I have to choose between my job and my

         20  health.

         21                 Each night the combined cigarette and

         22  cigar smoke where I work is so thick that I have to

         23  go outside for air 90 percent of the time.

         24                 When I work, I wake up this next

         25  morning with a smoke hangover which is so painful,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            192

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  and I can barely breathe in the morning, and it's

          3  similar to an alcohol hangover, but you just can't

          4  breathe and you can't get out of bed.

          5                 During a typical evening I experience

          6  eye irritation, dizziness, throat irritation,

          7  shortness of breath, heaviness in the chest. I use

          8  throat lozenges throughout the evening simply to get

          9  through my shift. The smokier the evening, the worse

         10  the symptoms.

         11                 I am under care of a physician for

         12  skin rashes, which they attribute to sensitivity to

         13  smoke, and I am on a prescription inhaler to ease my

         14  breathing, as well as two of my other colleagues

         15  are.

         16                 On February 2nd of 2002, a smoky

         17  evening at my job, I was sent at 6:40 p.m. to the

         18  emergency room at St. Luke's Roosevelt Hospital for

         19  smoke inhalation. I had breathing difficulty,

         20  dizziness and severe headache.

         21                 They basically told me that I need to

         22  quit my job. I asked them, well, do you think I

         23  should lessen the time that I work? And they said,

         24  no, you will die if you continue to work there. It's

         25  that simple.
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          2                 This deadly dynamic is 100 percent

          3  preventable and totally unacceptable. Most alarming

          4  is that my story is one of hundreds of similar

          5  stories that you will never hear because my fellow

          6  employees are afraid to speak up for fear of losing

          7  their jobs.

          8                 One young French African waiter has

          9  developed such severe sinus problems that it impairs

         10  his ability to work. He is supposed to be here today

         11  but he is on his tenth sick day call at work because

         12  he has such severe sinus infections.

         13                 While I stand before you telling my

         14  story, most of my colleagues who would like to tell

         15  their stories are simply too afraid.

         16                 I am angry that any professional is

         17  allowed subjugation to a breathable poison day in

         18  and day out on the job without protection. Even

         19  rescue workers are afforded gas masks.

         20                 We need your help and we need it now.

         21  Without a Citywide workplace smoking ban, more than

         22  1 million New York City workers are unprotected and

         23  left to fend for themselves.

         24                 And I just want to say one other

         25  thing. If the New York City restaurants can survive
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          2  9/11, we can survive a smoke ban. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MS. SUNDAY: Thank you.

          6                 MR. HORNER: Good afternoon. My name

          7  is Blair Horner. I'm Legislative Director for

          8  NYPIRG. I submitted a fairly detailed testimony. I,

          9  of course, won't read the whole thing, I will

         10  summarize it for you.

         11                 Just one other thing. I've been very

         12  involved in the issue of cigarette smoke now for

         13  years and served under the Cuomo Administration as

         14  an advisor to the State Health Department on Tobacco

         15  and was reappointed under the Pataki Administration

         16  to advise the State Health Department on tobacco

         17  issues, too. So, I have a couple of brief comments,

         18  because you've heard a lot already today.

         19                 One thing, though, I'd like to make

         20  crystal clear. From our review of the scientific

         21  evidence, there is no doubt that the world leading

         22  health organizations believe that cigarette smoke

         23  causes health hazards in non-smokers.

         24                 So, if you believe that, if you

         25  believe the World Health Organization, the EPA, and
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          2  the National Cancer Institute, U.S. Surgeons

          3  General, then policy has to flow from that, and the

          4  policy that should flow from that, we believe is a

          5  ban on smoking in workplaces and we're here today on

          6  NYPIRG's behalf to testify strongly in support of

          7  the legislation.

          8                 Clearly, we believe that no worker,

          9  nor should any member of the public be exposed to

         10  the toxins that are found in cigarette smoke, which

         11  I have attached a list at the back of my testimony.

         12                 The policy balance then rests on

         13  what's the impact of the industry, and you've

         14  already heard about it.

         15                 In California it provides a helpful

         16  guide. There, as was mentioned earlier by a person

         17  on the panel here, researchers have looked at he

         18  impact on California on such a ban. The research has

         19  concluded, "these laws appear to be good for

         20  business." And it also appears that it's good for

         21  bartenders.

         22                 According to an article published in

         23  the Journal of the American Medical Association,

         24  which is also in my testimony, they found that the

         25  vast majority of bartenders suffered from various
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          2  levels of respiratory problems. When the ban went

          3  into effect in California, the number dropped

          4  dramatically. And, of course, that makes perfect

          5  sense.

          6                 Workers who are smokers benefit in

          7  other ways, too. European researchers recently

          8  concluded that "Daily smoking prevalence among

          9  employees decreased considerably after the ban."

         10  People stopped smoking if they worked in

         11  restaurants.

         12                 And then secondly, an interesting

         13  quote from a finished study, "employees with less

         14  education showed a proportionally larger decrease in

         15  smoking prevalence after the ban was interacted."

         16                 So, it helps their workers' health,

         17  it also helps them kick the habit.

         18                 Undoubtedly you'll hear from a lot of

         19  people who have genuine concerns about the

         20  legislation, you've heard about some today, but

         21  don't underestimate how diabolical the tobacco lobby

         22  is.

         23                 We've looked at years of internal

         24  documents from the tobacco companies, and found that

         25  they had developed into a fine art, the use of
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          2  manipulating public opinion through front groups and

          3  manipulating those individuals who believe the

          4  information that they get from those front groups.

          5  I've consistently seen it in my years in Albany,

          6  statewide, how the tobacco industry is able to rev

          7  up opposition to legislation, even when -- wrap it

          8  up?

          9                 All right, inside my testimony is

         10  footnoted information about how one front group, the

         11  Empire State Restaurant and Tavern Association

         12  received nearly $500,000 to lobby on behalf of

         13  tobacco companies, illegal under the New York law.

         14                 I will also submit for the record,

         15  the OSHA news release saying, withdrawing their

         16  indoor air proposal, which you just heard about,

         17  saying "most of the activity and workplace

         18  restrictions are now taking place at the state and

         19  local level."

         20                 That was the reason they left, I'll

         21  leave it with you. The ball, according to OSHA, is

         22  in your court. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         24                 A couple of us have questions, and I

         25  just wanted to start off.
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          2                 Ms. Sunday, one, I want to thank you

          3  very much for coming in. Could you tell me a little

          4  more, if you don't mind, about that evening you had

          5  to go from work to St. Luke's Roosevelt Emergency

          6  Room? Just because what I thought I heard you say

          7  was quite remarkable, so just if you could kind of

          8  restate that part of your testimony? Because I want

          9  to make sure I didn't mishear "smoke inhalation," et

         10  cetera.

         11                 MS. SUNDAY: Oh, no, I was definitely

         12  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Could you just

         14  make sure your mic is on?

         15                 MS. SUNDAY: Do you want me to just

         16  read it straight from here?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Whatever you feel

         18  comfortable with.

         19                 MS. SUNDAY: Okay. On February 2nd,

         20  2002, I was at my job, and my lungs, I was getting a

         21  stabbing pain in my lungs, as well as my other

         22  workers. We were deciding whether we should walk,

         23  because we're union workers, to walk off the floor

         24  and close down the bar, or I should go to the

         25  hospital and make a stand, because I was in so much

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            199

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  pain.

          3                 So, we stayed and I stayed, and I was

          4  trying to -- and by the end I just couldn't breathe

          5  anymore.

          6                 So, I was sent to the emergency room

          7  for smoke inhalation. And I asked them, I said, I

          8  don't want to quit my job, I love my job, I'm an

          9  artist, it gives me the freedom to do whatever I

         10  want to do. And he said, you have to quit your job

         11  or else you will die. And I said, are you sure? What

         12  if two days, what if I just work two days a week?

         13  And he said, no, you can't. And I was, I was

         14  devastated. I was so upset. I knew that it was bad,

         15  but I didn't realize that -- I work in a room this

         16  size and cigar smoke levels at five feet, and I'm

         17  5'3". It's horrendous.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         19  much for restating that.

         20                 Council Member Oddo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Let me just say

         22  congratulations from being able to go from the Cuomo

         23  Administration to the Pataki Administration. That's

         24  a feat in and of itself, I would say.

         25                 With respect to your comments about
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          2  Phillip Morris, they're well taken. I remember being

          3  in this body when, I think it was the bill we were

          4  doing on the advertising ban around schools, and the

          5  gallery that is now empty was replete with so-called

          6  mom and pop store owners, they were all Phillip

          7  Morris employees.

          8                 I read with great interest this

          9  morning that Phillip Morris isn't going to be here

         10  in the Chambers with us, I hope we can say the same

         11  about its money, but I have my doubts. Is it Dr.

         12  Repace or Mr.?

         13                 MR. REPACE: It's Mr. Repace.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Repace, I've

         15  been inundated with my friends on the other side who

         16  are good people coming to me and saying ventilation

         17  works.

         18                 I'm intrigued by your comment that

         19  you need tornado-like levels to make it work. Can

         20  you just go into a little bit more detail about the

         21  problem.

         22                 MR. REPACE: Sure.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And why

         24  ventilation really is not an option?

         25                 MR. REPACE: Right. I've published

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            201

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  several papers in the Peer Review Scientific

          3  Literature addressing how much ventilation you would

          4  need to lower the cancer risk, or the heart disease

          5  risk down to what we would call by federal

          6  regulatory standards an acceptable level of risk.

          7  Not a zero level, but an acceptable level from

          8  federal regulatory standards. And it would take

          9  hundreds of air changes an hour to get an acceptable

         10  air exchange rate, get an acceptable concentration

         11  from federal regulatory rules. For lung cancer and

         12  thousands of air exchanges per your for heart

         13  disease, because heart disease is a much bigger risk

         14  from secondhand smoke than lung cancer.

         15                 So, you simply can't do it.

         16  Ventilation is just one part of the equation.

         17  There's the smoker density, and there's ventilation

         18  rate, and, so, one balances the other, and the

         19  question is, what's the safe concentration? People

         20  who say that ventilation works never say, well, I'm

         21  going to put in X amount of cubic feet per minute

         22  per occupant, and that's going to lower the

         23  concentration from this much to that much, and,

         24  therefore, the risk will go below a certain level.

         25  They never tell you that. They just say, you have to

